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54,678 33,553
46,321 56,566
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175,662 144,497
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3 (14,958) (27,293)
15,334 11,161
4, 27 16 25
4, 27 (778) (858)
(762) (833)
5 (94,246) (1,130)
7 93,857 (2,901)
8 132 66
14,315 6,363
9, 10 (85) (73)
11, 27 (9,628) (7,540)
(9,713) (7,613)
4,602 (1,250)
12 (1,119) 287
3,483 (963)
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2014 31 2015 31
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13, 23, 24, 27 440,404 489,238
13, 14, 23, 24, 25, 27 66,717 103,969
12 1,639 2,363
508,760 595,570
13, 23, 27 1,228,946 1,634,211
13, 14, 23, 24, 25, 27 18,938 13,826
13, 15, 23, 27 550 2,479
13, 16, 27 106,670 101,558
1,355,104 1,752,074
1,863,864 2,347,644
17, 26 6,613 7,285
26 1,321 1,321
17, 26 1,789 1,117
18 10,497 7,014
20,220 16,737
13, 19, 23, 24, 26, 27 1,075,548 1,497,816
13, 20, 23, 24, 26 275,941 108,322
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1,418,724 1,711,215
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13, 20, 23, 24, 26 141,645 18,110
13, 14, 23, 24, 25, 27 115,795 9,485
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1,843,644 2,330,907
1,863,864 2,347,644

50/202



2014
17, 26

2015 31

2013
17, 26

2014 31

EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

ooooOoog
7,285 1,321 1,117 7,014 16,737
- - - 3,483 3,483
- - - 3,483 3,483
(672) - 672 - -
6,613 1,321 1,789 10,497 20,220
6,191 1,321 2,211 7,977 17,700
- - - (963) (963)
- - - (963) (963)
1,094 - (1,094) . _
7,285 1,321 1,117 7,014 16,737

51/202



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

OoOoOoOoOodno
2015 31 2014 31

3,483 (963)

(102,075) 48,837

651 (1,308)

13 454,099 (56,487)
13, 14,

23, 24 32,140 32,914
13, 14,

23, 24 68,468 (59,885)

(5,112) (95,371)

(6,888) 4,014

444,766 (128,249)

13, 19, 23 420,039 673,949
13, 20,

23, 24 417,203 115,477

13, 19, 23 (1,272,112) (669,272)
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2014 2015 31
2015 31 2014 31

(8,870) (6,914)

(85) (119)

(254) (197)

(342) (240)

(26) (23)

(51) 47

(9,628) (7,540)

2012 31 2012 11 30
APA
APA 2012 2013
2015 31 2014 31
2015 31
8,870 2014 6,914

64/202



12

2015

2015

22.96

31

31
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2014

25

31

25

OooooOodd
2015 31 2014 31
(395) (497)
(724) 784
(1,119) 287
2015 31 2014 31
4,602 (1,250)
(1,151) 313
32 (26)
(1,119) 287
2014 25 24.32 2014
2015 31 2014 31
(48) (35)
467 464
(395) (497)
(29) 20
©) (48)
2,363 1,579
(724) 784
1,639 2,363

65/202



EDINETOOOO
OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)
oOoOooodn

13

(€]

@
2014 31

2015

31

1,669,350

550

104,730

85,655

1,669,350
85,655
550

104,730

1,774,630

85,655

1,860,285

183,030

1,225,973

5,910

417,586

1,225,973

417,586
183,030

5,910

183,030

1,231,883

417,586

1,832,499

2014

31

2,123,449

2,479

96,660

117,795

2,123,449

117,795

2,479

96,660

2,222,588

117,795

2,340,383

114,562

2,065,970

9,130

126,432

2,065,970

126,432

114,562

9,130

114,562

2,075,100

126,432

2,316,094
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15
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ooOoooOoo
()
2015 31 2014 31
15,073 9,461
56,654 96,741
10,484 9,568
@ 385 -
3,059 2,025
85,655 117,795
18,783 15,318
49,534 87,779
11,686 9,433
@ 99,944 -
3,083 2,032
183,030 114,562
2015 31 2014 31
839,867 990,878
1,812,580 2,831,261
406,061 311,823
@ 178,500 -
220,461 156,872
3,457,469 4,290,834
16 21
2015 31
168 227 3,300
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23, 27
17
454
454 113,000
373
18
2014 31 2015
19

oOoOooodn

2015 31 2014 31
104,730 96,660
1,940 4,898
106,670 101,558

I1SDA
315,000

2015 31 2014 31
8,402 8,402
113 113
454 454
51,302 51,302
129.9072 141.9975
6,613 7,285

2015 31 2014 31
8,402 8,402
6,613 7,285
1,789 1,117

31

68/202




EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

NHI

NHI
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2015 31 2014 31
1,497,816 1,769,414
322,339 516,825
(654, 663) (329,106)
(103, 689) (487,881)
13,745 28,564
1,075,548 1,497,816

2015 31 2014 31
568,154 245,224
97,700 157,124
(617,449) (340, 166)
103,689 487,881
(1,669) 18,001
150,425 568, 154

27
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20

2015 31

2014 31

2015 31 3,702

21

23,27
22

25,000 2014
2015 31

23

1SDA

31

oOoOooodn
2015 31 2014 31
417,586 126,432
417,586 126,432
2015 31 13
1,283 2014 1,295
2014 1,844
2015 31 2014 31
5,910 9,130
11,140 14,765
17,050 23,895
2015 31
30,000
262,875 2014 740,978
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CRO CFO
EMB

EMB
EMB

GIRMC GIRMC

GIRMC

GIRMC
EMB
GIRMC EMB

GIRMC GRMC GIRMC

GRMC
GIRMC
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2015 31 2014 31
2015 31 2014 31

NHI
BBB+ 2015
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ooooooo
2015 31 2014 31
14 85,655 117,795
22 - 25,000
550 2,479
13 1,671,284 2,128,334
21 (5,910) (9,130)
1,751,579 2,264,478
1SDA
2.3e
2015 31
EMB GIRMC
€h) @
©)
® ®)

EMB
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50 2014 57
2015 31
30 90
30 90
- 38,480 29,276 128,746 618,552 951,944 1,766,998
140,984 529 997 5,062 128,880 179,514 455,966
- 121,740 90,861 50,274 - - 262,875
140,984 160,749 121,134 184,082 747,432 1,131,458 2,485,839
140,984 160,749 121,134 184,082 747,432 1,131,458 2,485,839
2014 31
30 90
30 90
- 24,511 140,169 458,088 678,431 1,333,112 2,634,311
18,110 175 343 1,577 113,289 - 133,494
25,000 388,500 219,974 132,504 - - 765,978
43,110 413,186 360,486 592,169 791,720 1,333,112 3,533,783
43,110 413,186 360,486 592,169 791,720 1,333,112 3,533,783
2015 31
30 90

30 90

- 3,192 6,187 27,562 114,160 233,294 384,395
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COoooOC
- 3,192 6,187 27,562 114,160 233,294 384,395
- 279,232 502,623 13,265 56,462 77,422 929,004
- (233,788)  (487,584) (13,942) (30,027) (70,657)  (835,998)
- 45,444 15,039 677) 26,435 6,765 93,006
- 48,636 21,226 26,885 140,595 240,059 477,401
2014 31
30 90
30 90
- 3,400 7,373 30,942 117,925 349,443 509,083
- 3,400 7,373 30,942 117,925 349,443 509,083
- 213,448 608,499 88,540 53,397 66,015 1,029,899
- (218,983)  (602,945) (81,780) (29,783) (54,100)  (987,591)
- (5,535) 5,554 6,760 23,614 11,915 42,308
- (2,135) 12,927 37,702 141,539 361,358 551,391
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OoOoOoOoOodno
€))
@ ORM
©)
GIRMC EMB GIRMC
ORM
ORM 1) 2) 3)
ORM
24
2015 31
440,404 448,459 -
1,075,548 1,012,828 1,430
2014 31
489,238 491,731

1,497,816 1,366,278 7,011
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2015 31 2014 31
85,655 - 44,235 41,420 117,795 - 38,093 79,702
15,073 - 15,007 66 9,461 - 9,412 49
56,654 - 17,153 39,501 96,741 - 19,251 77,490
10,484 - 8,670 1,814 9,568 - 7,473 2,095
O 385 - 385 - - - - -
3,059 - 3,020 39 2,025 - 1,957 68
85,655 - 44,235 41,420 117,795 - 38,093 79,702
183,030 - 141,381 41,649 114,562 - 34,765 79,797
18,783 - 18,717 66 15,318 - 15,269 49
49,534 - 9,804 39,730 87,779 - 10,191 77,588
11,686 - 9,872 1,814 9,433 - 7,341 2,092
O 99,944 - 99,944 - - - - -
3,083 - 3,044 39 2,032 - 1,964 68
417,586 - 400,260 17,326 126,432 - 126,432 -
600,616 - 541,641 58,975 240,994 - 161,197 79,797
2015 31
14 168
227 2014 31
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OooooOodd
2015 31
79,702 79,797 -
(26,565) (27,697) (330)
- - 17,750
(11,323) (10,532) (94)
366 841 -
(760) (760) -
41,420 41,649 17,326
2,250 (1,884) 424
2014 31
95,178 96,974
13,105 11,042
(28,026) (27,744)
691 705
(1,246) (1,180)
79,702 79,797
6,706 (6,756)

2014 31
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oOoOooodn
2015 31 366 2014 691 841
2014 705
283 2014 696
758 2014 710
2015 31 760 2014 1,246 760
2014 1,180
422 2014 380 309 2014
639
422 2014 398 309 2014 639
PCVG
PCVG
CFO
CFO
MVG

MVG CRO
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Independent Price Verification Processes 1PV

1PV

1PV

PCVG MVG
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2015 31
(€))

66 66 DCF/ 15.05-15.93%
39,501 39,730 DCF/ 0.79-3.29%
13.73-31.52%
-0.01-0.99

(-1.0 to 1.0)
1,814 1,814 DCF/ 0-5.73%
16.27-47.33%
-0.75-0.91

(-1.0 to 1.0)
39 39 DCF 0.75-0.75

(-1.0 to 1.0)
- 17,326 DCF/ 0.48-2.88%
14.06-28.98%
0.35-0.99

(-1.0 to 1.0)

41,420 58,975
2014 31
()

49 49 DCF 18.48-19.58%
77,490 77,588 DCF 0.67-5.17%
10.61-23.53%
-0.04-0.99

(-1.0 to 1.0)
2,095 2,092 0.00-3.08%
15.27-55.50%
-0.78-0.94

(-1.0 to 1.0)
68 68 DCF 0.22-1.33%
20.00-20.00%
0.75-0.75

(-1.0 to 1.0)

79,702 79,797

@
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OooooOodd
211 2014 126
2015 31 2014 31
(126) (124)
312 (94)
25 92

211 (126)
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25.
2015 31
() @ (€)]
63,227 - 63,227 (56,505) (5,910) 812
143,518 - 143,518 (5,903) - 137,615
1,280 - 1,280 (1,280) - -
208,025 - 208,025 (63,688) (5,910) 138,427
144,680 - 144,680 (63,688) (80,992) -
144,680 - 144,680 (63,688) (80,992) -
2014 31
() @ ®
49,510 - 49,510 (39,977) (8,420) 1,113
290,994 - 290,994 (1,017) - 289,977
340,504 - 340,504 (40,994) (8,420) 291,090
82,953 - 82,953 (40,284) (42,669) -
710 - 710 (710) - -
83,663 - 83,663 (40,994) (42,669) -
@
@
®
ISDA 2014 31
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26
2015 31 2014 31
6,613 7,285
1,321 1,321
1,789 1,117
9,723 9,723
1,225,973 2,065,970
- 1,075,548 1,497,816
- 150,425 568,154
417,586 126,432
- 275,941 108,322
- 141,645 18,110
1,653,282 2,202,125
27
i. NHI 2015 31
2,539 2014 1,894 2015 31 NHI1
444,397 2014 243,379
2015 31 2014 31 NHI
ii. 19 NHI
2015 31 704
2014 750 2015 31 NHI
704 2014 750
iii. APA 11 APA NHI

8,870 2014 6,914

84/202



2015 31 8,870 2014 6,914

iv. 2015 31 NHI
36 2014 68
2015 31 NHI 18
2015 31
31 2014 31
i.
2015 31 2014
ii 1SDA
2015 31
62,580 144,033 2014

49,510 82,953

iii
2015 31
329 2014 2,458
iv. 2015 31
24,838 2014 35,501
V. 19 NHI
2015
75 2014
2015 31 75

108

vi. 2015 31 2014 31
22
Vil
11
viil
28
2015
2015

29
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31 3,489
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Interest and similar income
Interest and similar expense
Met interest income

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission expense
Met fee and commission expense

Met trading loss

Met gaindloss) on financial lizbilities
designated at fair value through prefit or loss
Other operating income

Met operating income

Salaries and social charges
General and administrative expenses

Total operating expenses
Profit{loss) before tax
Taxation (expensebenefit

Profiti{loss) for the year
Total comprehensive income for the
year

Mote

2

427
427

@10
11,27

2015 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
30,202 38,454
{14.958) (27,293)
15,334 11,161
16 25
(778) {858)
{762) (833)
(94,245) {1,130)
93,857 (2,801)
132 [
14,315 6,363
(85) (73}
(9,628) {7,540)
(8,713) (7.613)
4,602 (1,250)
{1.118) 287
3,483 (963)
3,483 (863}

The Company did not have Other Comprehensive Income for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31

March 2014,
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF FINAMCIAL POSITION

Non-current assets

Loans and advances to affiliates
Derivative financial assets
Deferred tax assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Loans and advances to affiliates
Denvative financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Cther assals

Total current assets

Total assets

Shareheolder's equity and liabilities

Shareholder's equity
Issued and paid-up capital
Share premium

Reserve

Retained eamings

Total sharehoider's equity

Mon-current liabilities

Debt issued and cther borrowing
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Dervative financial liabilities

Total non-current liabilities

Current liabilities

Debt issued and ather borrowing
Financial liabilities designated at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivative financial liabilities

Income tax payable

Cther liabilities

Total current hiabilities

Total liabilities

Total sharehoider's equity and liabilities

MNote

13222417
13,14,23,24,25 27

12

13,2327
12,14,23 24 25 27
13,1523, 17
13,16,27

17,26
el
17,26
]

13,19.23.24 36,17

13,200,233 24,26
3,14,23,24,25 27

13,19.23.26. 27

13,30,23, 24 26
13,714,232 24,25 27
12

13,2127

88/202

2015 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
440,404 4580 238
66,717 103,969
1,638 2363
508,780 595,570
1,228,846 1,534,211
18,938 13,825
550 2479
106,670 101,558
1,355,104 1,752,074
1,863,854 2,347 644
6,613 7.285
1,321 1,321
1,789 1,117
10,497 7.014
20,220 16,737
1,075,548 1,497,816
275,941 108,322
67,735 105,077
1,418,724 1,711,215
150,425 568,154
141,645 18,110
115,795 9,485
5 48
17 050 23,895
424,920 619,692
1,843,644 2,330,907
1,863, 864 2,347 644
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE M.V.

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

As at 1 April 2014 (Motes 17,26)
Prafit for the period

Total comprehensive income
Eure denominated capital
exchange valuation

As at 31 March 2015

As at 1 April 2013 (Notes 17,26)
Loss for the period

Total comprehensive income
Euro denominated capital
exchange valualion

As at 31 March 2014

ooooooo
lssued and pald-up Total sk
capital Share premium Reserve Retained earnings e
Millions of JPY Millions of JFY Millions of JPY Millions of JPY il
7,285 1,321 1,117 7,014
- - - 3,483
- E E 3483
i672) - 672 -
6,613 1,321 1,788 10,487 .
Issued and paid-up Total sh
__capital Share premium _Reserve Retained earnings _=®
Millians of JBY Millicns of JPY Millions of JPY Millions of JPY Wil
6,191 1,321 2211 7,977
- = = (263
- - - {963)
1.094 B (1.084) -
7,285 1,321 1,117 7,014
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Operational activities
Profitf{loss) for the year

Adjustments for:
Met profiti{loss) from financing acliviies
Others

Operating assets and operating liabilties;
Decreaself{increase) in loans and advances
to affiliates
Decrease in derivative financial assets
Increassf{decreass) in dermvative financial
lighilifies
Increasa in olher opearating assats
Decreasef{increase) in other operating
liabilities

Met cash flows fromf{used in) operating

activities

Financing activities

Proceeds from debt issued and other borrowing
Proceeds from financial liabilities designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Redemption of debt issued and other borrowing
Redemplion of financial liabilties designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Met cash flows fromi{used in) financing
activities

Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents
Met foreign exchange difference

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March

Operational cash flows

Interest paid
Interest received
Taxation payment

MNote

13,1923

13202324
13,1923

13,0234

15.27

90/202

2015 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
3,483 (G632}
(102.075) 48,837
651 {1,308)
454,089 (56.487)
32140 32914
58,468 (59.885)
(5,112) (95,371}
(5,828) 4014
444, 766 {128,249)
420,039 673,949
417,203 115,477
(1,272,112) (BB9,272)
{11.897) -
(446,767 120,154
{2.001) {8,005}
73 525
2,478 10,049
550 2,479
2015 2014
Millions of JEY Millions of JPY
(30,415) {44, 403)
33,103 39,040
(457} (464)
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
1. Corporate information

Momura Europe Finance NV (the “Company”) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Nomura Holdings, Inc.
{"MHIT, a company incorporated in Japan and listed in Japan, the United States of America and
Singapore, which is also the ultimate parent of the Company.

The Company, incorporated and domiciled in Amsterdam, the Metherands, is a imited liability company
under the Dutch law and its registered office is at Rembrandt Tower, Amstelplein 1, 1086 HA Amsterdam,
the Metherlands.

The Company's principal acthvity is to act as a funding entity for NHI and its subsidiaries (colledively the
Tomura Group™).

The Company’s financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2015 are submitted to the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders on 15" July 2015 for adoption. The shareholder's meeting can reject
the financial statements but cannot amend them.

2. Accounting policies
21 Basis of accounting

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015 have been prepared in
accordance with Intemational Financial Reporling Sandards (IFRS") as adopted by the Eurcpean
Unien (*EU"). The financial statements have also been prepared in accordance with the reguirements
in Title 8 Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code,

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for derivative financial
instruments and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and less, which have all
beem measured at fair value.

The financial statements are presented in Japanese Yen ("JPY") and all values are rounded to the
nearest milion (“Millions of JPY™) except where otherwise stated,

2.2 Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company's financial statements requires management to make judgements,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities,
and the accompanying disclosures.

Fair value of financial instruments

Significant amount of judgements and eglimales were applied to the fair value of certain financial assets
and financial liabilities, Varous valuation techniques are vsed to determine fair values of financial assats
and financial isbiities, where these fair values cannot be derived from an active market. Observable
market data is used in the valuation models as far as feasble. If no observable data is available, a degree
of judgement is required to determine fair values,

Impairment | 5 ans and advances

The Company reviews its loans and advances at each statement of financial position date to assess
whether an allewance for impairment should be recorded in the statement of comprehensive income.
In particular, judgement by management is required in the estimation of the amount and timing of
future cash flows when determining the level of allowance required. Such estimates are based on
assumptions that a number of factors and actual results may differ, resulting in future changes to the
allowance. A loan is impaired when there is objedive evidence that, as a result of one or more events
that occurred after the initial recognition of the loan, the estimated future cash flows of the loan have
been affected. For loans, objective evidence of impaiment includes for example a significant financial
difficulty of the borrower, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments or probability that the
borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation.
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NOMURA EUROPE FINANCE N.V.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
2.3 Summary of significant accounting policies

a) Foreign currencies

The financial satements are presented in JPY, which is the fundtional and presentation curency of the
Company.

Fereign currency transactions during the pericd are franslated at the rates of exchange on the date of the
transaction,

Subsequent to intial recogniticn monetary items are translated at closing rate and nor-monetary items
at historical spot rate at each statement of financial position date. Foreign exchange gains and losses on
financial assats and financial liabilties that are monetary assets and monetary liabilities are recognised
in the gatement of comprehensive income,

b}  Operating income
(i} Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, except for those cdassified as derivatives held

for trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss, are recognised under
Irterest and similar income or Infenest and similar expensa using the effective interest rate (*EIR™) method.

The EIR method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset or liability (or a
group of assets and liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense over the
relevant penods. The EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the expecied future cash payments or
receipts through the expected life of the financial instrumeant, or when appropriate, a shorter peried, to
the net carrying amount of the instrument, This calculation takes into account the impact of all fees
and commissions, paid of received, directly altributable to the transactions, and discounts o
premiums that are integral part of the EIR method.

iy Metfees and commission income

Loan orgination fees are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income as an adjustment to the
yield on the financial assels carned at amortised cost using the EIR methed.

Upfront fees received and paid on derivative financial instrum ents are recegnised as part of the initial fair
value measurement of the related financial instrument,

If it is probable that the Company will enter into a specific lending arrangement and the loan commitm ent
is not within the scope of IAS 39, the commitment fee received is regarded as compensation for an
ongoing involverment with the acquistion of a finandal instrument and, together with the related
fransaction cogts (as defined in 1AS 39), is deferred and recognised as an adjustment to the EIR. If the
commitment expires without the Company making the loan, the fee is recognised as revenue on expiry,
Loan commitments that are within the scope of IAS 30 are accounted for as dervatives and measured at
fair value,
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e} Fair value of inancial instruments

Some of the financial instruments of the Company are held at fair value. A description of the
Company's policies with regards to its application of fair value measurements to significant financial
instruments is as follows:

{i} Determination of fair values and fair value measurement

The Company measures financial insgruments, such as derivatives, at fair value at each balance
sheet date. For other financial instruments which are measured at amortized co=t, fair values are
disclosad in MNote 24,

Fair value is the price that would be receved to sell an asset or paid to transfer a ability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

= |nthe principal market for the asset or Bability, or

- Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantagecus market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

Where quoted market prices or brokerfdealer quotations are not available for financial instruments,
prices for amilar instruments or valuation pricing models are considered in the determination of fair
value, Such financial instruments are valued using models with significant unobservable inputs such
as correlation, long-dated volatility, or other uncbservable inputs. Valuation pricing models consider
contractual terms, position size, underlying asset prices, interest rates. dividend rates, time value,
volatility and other statistical measurem ents for the relevant instruments or for instruments with similar
characteristics. These models also incorporate adjustments relating to market liquidity adjustments.
These adjustments are fundamental components of the fair value calculation process. The valuation
technique used maximises the use of market inputs and minimisas the use of Company-specific
inputs which are unobservable in the market.

Valuation pricing models and their underlying assumptions impact the amount and timing of
unrealised gains and losses recognised and the use of different valuation pricing models or underlying
assumplions could produce different financial results. Any changes in the fixed income, equity, and
foreign exchange and commodity markets can impact the Company's estimates of fair value in the
future, potentially affecting trading gains and losses, The Company's estimates of fair value may
involve greater subjectivity due to the lack of transparent market data available upon which to base
azsumplions of underlying valuation pricing models.

The Company applies exception in IFRS 13.48 lo measure the fair value of financial assets and
financial liabilities on the basis of mid price. For hybrid ingruments where the embedded derivatives
are separated and financial instruments for which the fair value option (*FVO) is applied, the exposure
on such instruments is offset by the hedging denvatives.

All gains and losses from changes in the fair value of financial instruments that are classified as held
for trading are recognised under Met trading incomer(less).

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categonisad within the fair value hierarchy, descabed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 Unadjusied quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabiliies accessible by the
Ceompany at the measurement date.

Level 2 Quoted prices in inactive markets or prices containing other inputs which are observable,
either directly or indirectly. Valuation techniques using obsarvable inputs reflect assumplions
used by market paricipants in pricing financial instruments and are based on data obtained
frem independent market sources at the measurement date.
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Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement of the financial
ingtrument. Valuation techmiques wusing unobservable inputs reflect management's
assumptions about the estimates used by other market participants in valuing similar financial
instruments. These wvaluation technigues are developed based on the best available
information at the measurement date,

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above.

For assetz and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have ocourred between Levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation at the beginning of each reporting pericd.

(i}  Recognition of day 1 gains and losses

The fair value of a financial instrument is normally the transaction price (e the fair value of
consideration given or received). However, in some cases, the fair value at inception will be based on
a wvaluation pricing model incorporating only observable parameters in the market or on other
cbservable current market transactions in the same instrument, without modification or repackaging.
Where such valuation techniques are used to derve fair values from market cbservable inputs, the
difference between fair valug and the transaction price is inttially recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Valuation technigues incorporating significant uncbservable parameters may also be wsed to
determine fair value at inception. In such cases, the difference between the transadtion price and
model value is only recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the inputs become
ohservable or when the instrument is derecognised.

{iiiy  Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss

Certain finandal instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss by management
when one of the following ertena is met:

1. The financial instrument contains an embedded derivative that significantly modifies the
cash flows resulting from the financial instrument; or

2, Fair value wil eiminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise result from measuring related financial instruments
on different bases; or

3. The finandgal instrument is part of a group of finanaal instrum ents both managed and
evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment srategy. Information about these finandal instruments is provided internally
on a fair value basis to the Company’s key management personnel.

The Company seeks to minimize the market risks by entering into dervalive agreements to
economically hedge the exposures of medium term notes. The value of hedging denvative and the
assodated note have the same performance which offset each other, thus by applying FVO to notes
the Company expects to reduce recognition inconsistency and valuation volatility.

Starting from 1 April 2014, the Company applies FVO to all newly issued fixed-rate plain vanilla noles
and hybrid instruments where the embedded dervatives are not separated.

For other financial instruments, the Company undertakes FWO election on an instrument-by-
instrument basis, This applies to those instruments that meet one or more of the above critena, where
fair value would provide a fairer representation of the risks associated with those instuments.

The election of FVO must take place on initial recognition of the financial instrument and may not be
revoked subsequently.
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dj Financial instruments

Financial instruments within the scope of IAS 39 are classified either as financial assets or financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, financial liabilties at amortized cost,
available-for-sale investments or held-to-maturity investments.

The Company determines the classification of its financial assets on initial recognition depending
upon the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired and their charactenistics. For
hybrid instruments, the Company considers whether a contract contains an embedded denvative
when the Company first becomes party {o it and determines the appropriate classification at that time,

(it  Dervative financial instruments

Financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss include derivative financial
instruments held for trading. Financial assets and financeal liabilities are cassified as held for trading if
(1) they are acquired orincurred principally for the purpose of sale or repurchase in the near term; (2)
on initial recognition they are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit taking: or {3)
they are derivatives, except for a derivative that is a financial guarantee or a designated and effective
hedging instrument.

Dervative instruments are used primarily for risk management purposes, The Company uses
derivatives to economically hedge exposures such as its interest and foreign exchange exposures. In
accordance with 1AS 38, all denvatives are recognised initially on the date when the Company
becomes a party to the confract at fair value and subsequently measured at fair value, with derivatives
having positive fair values cared as assets and derivatives with negative fair values carried as
liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Dernvatives embedded in contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair
value if (1) their economic characterstics and nisks are not closely related to those of the host
conmtracts; (2) a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded dervative would meet the
definition of a derivative, and (3) if the hybrid {combined) instrum ent is not measured at fair value with
changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.
Reassessment only occurs if there is a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required.

{iiy  Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilties dassified in this category are those that have been designated by management
upan initial recognition when daing so results in more relevant information. Instrum ents so designated
are fived-rate plain vanilla notes, hybAd instruments where the embedded dervatives are not
separated and the instruments that meet one or more of the criteria mentioned in Mate 2.3 ) (i),

These instruments are recognised initially at fair value and transaction costs are taken directly to the
statement of comprehensive income. Interest expenses, gains and losses arising from changes in fair
value and transaction costs assodated to the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
of loss are recognised under Net gaindioss) on financial liakiities designated at fair value through
profE or loss, except for the currency bransiation effect which is included in Nef trading incomedioss).

Loan commitments designated as financial abikties at fair value through profit or lees ane in within the
scope of IAS 38, These loan commitments are initially recognized on the date when the Company
becomes a party to the confract, and subsequently measured at fair value with changes in fair value
reported under Net gaindioss) on fimancial fabilfies designated af fair value through profit or loss.

{iiiy ~ Financial instruments at amortised cost
&) Loans and receivables
Leans and receivables are non-dervative financial assets with fixed or determinable

payments that are not quoted in an aclive market, Loans and receivables are initially
recognised on the date when the Company becomes a party to the contract, including any
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direct and incremental transaction costs. After initial measurement, loans and receivables are
subsequently carried at amorlised cost using the EIR method less any allowance for
impairment, Amortised cost is calculated taking inte account any discount or premium on
acquisition and includes fees that are an integral part of the EIR and transaction costs. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of comprehensive income when the loans and
receivables are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation process.

b Firancial fabiliies al amortised cost
Financial liabilities at amortised cost include certain bonds and notes issued and other
bomrowings, Financial liabilities at amerised cost are initially recognised on the date when the
Company becomes a party to the contract. After initial measurement, these instruments are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method,

Initial measuremert of financial insruments

When a financial asset or financial liability is recognised iniially, the Company measures it at its fair
value plus, in the case of a financial asset or financial Bability not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financal asset or
finamcial liability.

Derecogniion

A financial asset is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flow from the asset have expired or
when the Company has transfemed its nights to receive the cash flow from the asset and the Company
has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the bability is discharged, cancelled or
expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by ancther from the same |lender on substantially
different terms, or the terms of an exigling liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference in the respedlive carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income,

e) Impairment

The Company assesses at the reporting date whether there is any objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset is considered impaired if, and only if,
there is objective evidence of impaiment as a result of one or more loss events that occurred after the
imitial recognition of the asset and pricr to the datement of inancial position date, and that logs svent
has had an impact on the estimated fulure cash flows of the financial asset that can be reliably
estimated.

For loans and receivables, the amount of impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
assets carrying amount and the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the assets
original EIR. The amount of the loss is included in the statement of comprehensive income. If, in a
subsequent pericd, the amount of impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
chjectively to an event occuming after the impaiment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed in the statement of comprehensive incomae,

f Offsetting financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabiites are presented on a gross basis unless the Company has a

legally enforceable right to set off the financial asset and financial iability and the Company intends to
selile the financial asset and financial liability on a net basis.
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g Hedge accounting

The Company can make use of dervalive instruments to manage exposures to intered rate risks. In
order to manage a particular risk, the Company may apply hedge accounting for transactions which meet
the cntena explained under |AS 39,

Interest rate swaps can be designated as hedging insdruments in fair value hedge relationships. At the
inception of the hedge relationship, the relationship between the hedged itern and the hedging instram ent
should be formally documented, induding the nature of the nsks, the objective and drategy for
undertaking the hedge and the methed that will be used to assess the effectiveness of the hedging
relationship.

Also, at the inceplion of the hedging relationship, a formal assessment should be undertaken to ensure
that the hedging instrument is expected to be highly effedive in offsetting the designated rsk in the
hedged item. The effeciiveness of hedging relationships is assessed at every reporting date. A hedge
relationship is expected to be highly effective if the changes in fair value altributable to the hedged risk
during the period for which the hedge is designated are expected to offsat in a range of 80%6-125%.

If the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated or exercised, or when the hedge no longer
meets the crteria for hedge accounting, then the hedging accounting is discontinued. The difference
between the camying amount of the hedged tem on the last date when the hedging relationship was
assessed as effective and the amount at which it would have been camied had the hedge never exiged is
amaortised over the remaining term of the onginal hedge using the EIR method and is recognized under
Interest and simiar expense. When the hedged item is derecognised, the unamortised fair value
adjugtment is recognised immediately under Other operating incomerloss).

As of 31 March 2014, the [ast remaining fair value hedge was discontinued as the hedge no longer met
the criteria for hedge accounting. Hedge ineffectiveness is recognised in the statement of
comprehensive income under Mel trading incomedioss) for the year ended 31 March 2014,

] Statement of cash flows

Statement of cash flows has been prepared using the indired method. Cash and cash equivalents
consist of cash in banks.

Feor the purpose of the cash flow statement, adiusiments for net profit from financing activiies are non-
Cash items which include the effects of foreign exchange results, fair value hedge basis adjustments and
amortisation of debt issued and other bomowing usng the effective inferest rate method,

The movement in the Deferred fax assets is included in the line item Ofhers while the movement in the
income tax receivablefpavable) is induded in the line tems Decreasaiincreasa) n ofher oparaling
assets and Increase in operaling kabidies, Both these line items are presented under Nef cash flows
fromirsed in operating activities.

i) Taxation

Current tax assets and liabilities for the cumrent and prior years are measured as the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary difference between the carrying
amounts in the statement of finandal position and the tax base. Deferred tax assels are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
difference can be utilised.

The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substanthvely
enacted as of the Satement of financial postion date.
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24  Segment reporting

The Company has organised its business activities based on its products and services, As the Company
only engages in one operating segment of financing activity, the gress and net assets and profitloss
before taxation as presented in the face of the financial statements are related to the same segment, The
majonity of the debt is issued to Japanese investors. All loans and derivalives, except for dervatives
embedded in some of the medium term notes, are transacted with the Nomura Group,

25 Changes inaccounting policies and estimates

Changes in accounting policies
The accounting poficies are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for the
adoption of the following amendments to standards that has become effective and are relevant to the

financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2015,

Amendments to |1AS 32 Financial (nstruments. Offsetfing Financial 4ssets and Financial Liabiities —
Eregentalion

The amendments darify the meaning of “cumently has a legally enforceable right to set-off” and also
dlanfy the application of the |AS 32 offsetting eritenia to settlement systems (such as central dearng
house systems) which apply gross settlement mechanisms that are not simultaneous.

The Company adopted these amendments to 145 32 from 1 Aprl 2014, Because the Company
currently does not have legally enforceable rights of set-off for its financial assets and financial
liabilities, the amendments did not have a material impact on its financial position and perfformance.

Changes in accounting estimates
The accounting estimates are consistent with those of the previous finanaal year.

26  Standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorzation of thess financial statements, the following new standards and
amendments to the existing standards and interpretations that are likely to be applicable to the
Company have been izzued by the Infernational Accounting Standards Board (“IASBE") but not yet
effective for the year ended 31 March 2015;

| Finarncial |

IFRS 9 Financial Ingtruments includes requirem ents for recegnition and measurement, and hedge
accounting. The aim is to form a complete replacement for 1AS 30 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement. IFRS 9 was criginally issued in November 2009, and finalized in July 2014,

IFRS 9 does not require the restatement of comparative-period financial statements for the initial
application of the classification and measurement requirements of IFRS 9, but requires modified
disclosures on fransition to IFRS 9. The Company is in the process of assessing the effects as these
requirem ents are different from the requirements under the existing IAS 20 rules. Financial liabilities
that are currently designated at fair value through profit or loss will have their changes in own credit
risk recognised directly into other comprehensive income.

IFRS 2 is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The Company is currently
evaluating the potential impact of IFRS 9 on its finandal position and perfarmance. This standard has
not been endorsed by the EU.

IFRS 15 Revenue from Confracts with Customers

In May 2014, the IASB issued IFRS 15, "Revenue from Contracts with Customers®, which specifies
how and when revenue is recognised, but does not impact income recognition related to financial
instruments in scope of IFRS SAS 39, IFRS 15 replaces several other IFRS standards and
interpretations that currently govern revenue recognition under IFRS and provides a single, principle
based five-step model to be applied to all contracts with customers, The standard also requires
enfities to provide users of financial statements with more informative and relevant disclosures.
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IFRS 15 will be effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017 with eardy adoption
permitted. The Company does not expect this new standard to have a matenial impact on its financial
position and performance, This standard has not been endorsed by the EU,

Amendments to 1AS 18 Defined Benefit Plans. Employee Confributions
The amendments apply to contributions from employees or third parties to defined benefit plans. This
standard is endorsed by EU and effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 Feb 2015 with

early adoption permitted.

Bazed on the assessments made, the amended standard is not expected to have a matenal impact
of the financial position, performance and notes to the financial statem ents of the Company.

Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2010-2012 Cycle and 2011-2013 Cyele

A collection of amendments to IFRSs is isswed in response to issues addressed dunng 2010-2012
and 2011-2013 cycle. One of the amendments to IFRS 13 and the amendment to IFRS 1 only affect
the Basis for Conclusions for the respective standards and, therefore, are effective immediately. The
cther amendments are endorsed by EU and effective from 1 Jan 2013 (2011-2012 cyde) and 1 Feb
2015 {2010-2012 eycle) either prospectively or retrospectively,

Based on the assessments made, amendments to IFRSs are not expecled to have a matenal impact
on the financial position, perffomance and notes to the financial statements of the Company.

3. Interest income and expense

For the year ended

March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Interest and similar income
Loans and advances to affiliates (Mote 27) 30,221 38,314
Cash collateral (Note 16) 67 126
Cash and cash equivalents (Mote 27) 2 14
Other 2 -
30,292 38,454
For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JFY Millions of JPY
Interast and similar expense
Debt issued and olher borrowing (14 ,948) (27,285)
Cash collateral received (Mote 21) (10} (8)
{14 958) (27 253)

Main reason of the increase in Nt iderest income is the changes in market conditions of interest, such
as interest rate gap between bormowing rate and lending rate where cumencies are different, As the
Company economically hedges its interest and foreign exchange exposures ansing from such gaps with
the use of derivatives, the increase of Net inferest income is partly offsel by a comesponding increase in
Net trading lozs (Mote 5),
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4. Metfee and commission expense

For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Guarantee fee paid (Mote 27) (778) (858
Commitment fee received (Mote 27) 16 25
{TE2) (833)
5. Nettrading loss
For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Met trading incomef{loss) on derivative financial
instruments (93,650 612
Fair value hedge ineffectiveness (Mote &) = 45
Met forelgn exchange lossas 1596) {1,787}
(54, 245) {1.130)

The Company manages the risks ansing from fluciuations such as in foreign currency exchanges and
interest rates with the use of finandal dedvatives. The gains and losses on financial dedvatives, which are
held for risk management purposes to offset these fluctuations but do not form part of a qualifying
hedging relationships, are included in line Met trading loss, The movement in Met trading loss partly
offsets the movement in Nel gaindloss) on financial Fabilties designated at fai value through profit or loss
{Mote 7) for the hedging of finandal liabilties designated at fair value through proft or loss and the
movement in Nef iferest income (Mote 3) for the hedging of financial products other than financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss,

Az af 31 Mareh 2014, the lagt remaining fair value hedge was discontinued as the hedge no longer met
the criteria for hedge accounting. Hedge ineffectiveness arising from the fair value hedge is included in
Net trading loss for the year ended 31 March 2014,

Fer hybrid instruments where the embedded derivatives are separated and measured at fair value, the
gains and losses on hedging denvatives are offset by the gains and losses on embedded derivatives, For
the instruments which are not bifurcated. the gains and losses on hedging denvatives may cause
fluctuation in the recognition of gains and losses in Nei frading koss.

The vast majority of the increase in MNef trading loss for the year ended 31 March 2015 compared to
the yvear ended 31 March 2014 is resulting from the hedging derivatives associated to the financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss. This increase is offset by a coresponding
increase in the Net gaindloss) on fnancial fabilties designated at fair value through profif or loss
{Mote 7).

Risk management, for information regarding the nature and extent of the Company's dealing with
financial nstruments, is disclosed in Note 23.
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6. Fair value hedges

For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millicns of JEY Millions of JEY

Gainf{loss) in fair value of hedged items

attributable to the hedged risk - 362
Gainf{loss) in fair value of hedging

instruments = (317}
Fair value hedge ineffectiveness (Mote 5) - 45

T. MNet gaini{loss) on financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JBY Millions of JEY
Met gainf{loss) on financial liabilities
degignated at fair value through profit or
loss 03,857 (2,901)
03,857 {2,901}

Interest expenses, gains and losses arsing from changes in fair value and transaction cosis
azsodcated to the financial liabikties designated at fair value threugh profit or loss are recognised under
Net gainfloss) on financial labilities designated at fair value through profit or joss, except for the
currency translation effect which is induded in Net trading income.

The Company calculates and applies own credit adjustment based on movements in the credit spread
of the Nomura Group. Notes issued by the Company are guaranteed by MHI (Refer to Mote 18 and Note
27 therefore the Company utilizes the oredit spread of the Nomura Group for calculation of own credit
adjugment. The impact of changes in own credit nsk included under Nef gaindioss) on financial
Habifities desgnated at fair value through profit or loss is JPY 13 million gain for the year ended 31 March
215 (JPY 1,295 million less for the yvear ended 31 March 2014). The majoaty of this change is temming
from new financial kabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss duning the cument reporting
period.

This increase Mel gaindioss) on financial liabites designated at fair value through profit or joss is

offset by an increase in Nef frading kess (Note 5) resulting from the hedging derivatives associated to
the financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss.

8. Other operating income/(loss)

For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JFY Millions of JFY
Redemplion gains/(losses) 126 52
Others ] 14
132 565
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9, Salaries and social charges

For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millionz of JBY Millions of JPY
Salaries (B6) (80)
Pension premium (10) (5)
Social charges and welfare {8) (8)
(85) (73)

10. Number of employees

The Company had eight (8) employees as of 31 March 2015 (2014: 8). Four (4) of the 8 employees were
working part time as of 31 March 2015(2014; 5).

11. General and administrative expenses

For the year ended

March 2015 March 2014

Millions of JPY Millions of JFY

Advance pricing amangement
adjustment {(Note 27) (8,870) (B,914)
Sub-contractor fees (MNotes 27) (85) (119}
Taxes cther than income tax {254) {187}
Professional fees {342) (240)
Administrative (Mote 27) (26) (23)
Cthers (51) (47)
{5.628) (7,540

Advance pricing arrangemant

Advanced pricing agreement for the avoidance of double taxation in the Nethedands and in Japan has
expired on 31 March 2012, On 30 November 2012, the Company filed a request to Dutch tax
autharities for a unilateral advance pricing agreement (the “*Unilateral APA"), Dutch tax authorties
approved the Unilateral AFA on 4 April 2014, The Unilateral APA applies exclusively to the period
from 1 April 2013 up to and including 31 March 2017, with retroactive effect to 1 April 2012, Fer the
years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, NHI and the Company agreed to setfle the
adjustment in line with the terms of Unilateral APA. Consequently, for the year ended 31 March 2015
JPY 8,870 million (31 March 2014; JPY 6.914 million) adjustment amount payable to NHI is included
in the abowve account line item advance pricing arrangem ent adjustment.
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12. Taxation
gﬂ components of the taxation benefit for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014 are as
| o
For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Current tax;
Current income tax (323) (497
Adjustment in respect of current incom e tay
of prior years = -
Deferred tax:
Relating to temporary differences 1724} 784
Taxation (expenselbenefil (1,118) 287
For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Prafit/(loss) before tax 4,602 {1,250)
At Dutch statutory income tax rate of 25% (1,151) 313
Adjustment in respect of current incom e tax of
prior years - -
Effect of permanent difference between taxable
income and accounting profit 32 {28}
Taxation {expenseibenefi {1,115} 287

The nominal tax rate for the fiscal year ended 31 March 2015 is 25% (2014:25%) while the effecthve tax
rate is 24.32% (2014; 22 9E%).

The movements in the income tax (payable)receivable and defemred tax assets are as follow:

For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Income tax (payable)receivable
Beginning balance (48) (35)
Payment 457 464
Charged to income {385) (487
Other movements {280 20
Ending balance (] (48]
Daferred tax assets
Beginning balance 2,363 1,579
Increase related to temparary differences (724) T84
Ending balance 1,638 2,363

Deferred tax assets are recognised for temperary differences between the carrying amounts in the
staternent of financial position and the tax base. The majority of the deferred tax assets of the
Company pertain to the valuation of the derivative financial instruments,
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13. Financial instruments classification summary

As of March 2015

Milkons of JPY |
Financial Liabilitis
designated at fai
Loans and Financial liabilities  value through pro
receivables Held for trading at amortised cost or loss
Loans and advances to affiliates 1,689,350 - -
Dervative financial assets - 85,655 =
Cash and cash equivalents 550 - -
Other assats
- gash collateral (Mota 18) 104.730 - -
Total inancial assets 1,774,630 85,655 - |
Debt issued and other borrowing - - 1,225.973
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss 5 ¥ - 4175
Dervative financial liabilfies 183,030
Other liabilities
- cash collateral received (Mote 21) - - 5,910
Total financial liabilities - 183,030 1,231, 883 41 ?'5.
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Loans and advances to affiliates
Demvative financial assets

- held for trading

- with hedging relationship

{hedge accounting)'”

Cash and cash equivalents
Other assets

- gash collateral (Mote 18)
Total financial assets

Debt issued and other bormowing

- not in connecticon with fair value

hedge

- in connection with fair value hedge
Financial liabilities designated at fair value
through profit or loss
Dervative financial liabilties

- derivatives held for trading
Other liabilities

- cash collateral recerved (Mote 21)
Tetal financial liabilities

1] Tha tar valus hedge effechyenass relallons b proved

oOoOooodn

As of March 2014

Milkons of JPY

Financial Liabiliti
designated at fa

Loans and Financial liabilities  value through pro
receivables Held for trading at amortised cost or loss
2,123,448 - -
- 117,785 -
2479 - -
94.6860 = =
2,722 588 117,795
- - 2,085,970
- - - 1264
- 114,562 -
- - £,130 .
= 114 562 2,075,100 1264

to be melledive as of 31 March 3014 therefore the Far value hedge relationshp was de oesignated
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14. Derivative financial instruments'"

As of
Mareh 2015 March 2014
illions of JPY Millions of JPY
Positive fair values

Foreign exchange related derivatives 15,073 9,461
Interest rate derivatives 55,654 96,741
Equity derivatives o 10,484 8,568
Commodity derivatives™ 385 -
Credit derivatives 3.059 2,025
85,655 117,785

Megative fair values
Foreign exchange related derivatives 18,783 15,318
Interest rate dermvatives 40 534 87.779
Equity derivatives 11,686 9433
Commaodity dervatives”! o0 644 -
Credit derivatives 3,083 2,032
183,030 114,562

Above figures in tables consist of current and non-current dervative financial assets and derivative
financial liabilities.

As of
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JBY
Molional amounts
Foreign exchange related dervatives 839,867 250,878
Interest rate derivatives 1.812,580 2,831,261
Equity derbvatives 405,061 311,823
Commodity derivatives”’ 178,500 -
Credit derivatives 220,461 156 872
3,457 489 4,290 834

All the above figures in tables include bifurcated embedded dedvatives.

All foreign exchange related derivatives and other derivatives mentioned above, except for bifurcated
embedded derivatives, are transacted with the Nemura Group.

The Company uses derivatives (principally interest rate swaps) for hedging purposes in the
management of its own asset and liability portfalics. This enables the Company to mitigate the marcet
risk and interest rate risk arising from its assets and liabilities,

Majority of the decrease in both the postive and negative fair values of dervative finandal instruments
comesponds to the decrease in the positive and negative fair value of hedging dervatives due to changes
in the market conditions,

When caleulating the fair value of the dervalives, the credit and debit valuation adjustments are taken
into account. The credit and debit valuation adjustments are minimal as the Company exchanges
cash collateral (Motes 16 and 21).

11 Each derwvalve classficabon includes dervatives referancng mulips fnsk componants Fof example, inferest rabe contracis
mnc hide comples: detivatives referenang inberest refe nskoas well &= foreign echange risk
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21 Dueto merpgsaed ransection and signficance, & new prodict ype, Commoedly dervalves, s added 1o the above tables for the
year ended 31 March 205 JPY 163 miion of postive far values, JPY 227 milion of negatve far values and J°Y 3, 300 mifson
of netional amouris of Commndly dervalyes were included n Squdy darvaives for the year endsd 21 Merch 2014

15. Cash and cash equivalents

The balance only comprises of cash in banks which is unrestricted for disposal,

16. Othar assats
As of
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JEY
Cash collateral (Notes 23 and 27) 104,730 05,660
Oithisrs 1,940 4,808
108,670 101,558

Under ISDA Credit Support Annex signed with related paties, the Company places cash colisferal which
is restricted for disposal to demvative counterparties related fo denvatve transactions. Others mainly
include accrued interest income.

17. Issued and paid-up capital and reserve

The authorised share capital consists of 315,000 ordinary shares of Euro ("EUR") 454 par value per
share, The issued and paid-up share capital compnises of 113.000 shares with EUR 454 par value per
share,

Details of the issued and paid-up capital are as follows:

As of
March 2015 March 2014
Issued and paid-up capital at historical cost
(WJPY Millions) 8,402 8402
Issued and paid-up shares (Thousands} 113 113
Par value per share {(EUR) 454 454
Issued shares at par value (EUR Thousands) 51.302 51,202
Exchange rate (EUR-JPY) 1286072 141.9575
lssued and paid-up capital (JFY Millions) 5,613 7,285
Details of the reserve are as follows:
As of
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
lssued and paid-up capital at higtorcal cost 8,402 8,402
|s=ued and paid-up capital 6613 7,285
Translation difference 1,789 1,117

As required by Aricle 2:373 paragraph 5 of the Dutch Chil Code the Issued and paid-up capial
account is measured using the shares issued and paid-up at par and translated using the closing rate
from EUR fo JPY as of the statement of financial position date. The difference between the historical
cost and the carrying amount of the issued and paid-up capital as of the statement financial position
date is recorded under Reserve account.
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18. Dividends paid

Mo dividend was declared or paid during the vears ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014,

19. Debt issued and other borrowing

a. Mon-current debl issued and cther borrowing

For the year endad
March 2015 March 2014
Millicns of JPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance 1.497 8185 1,768,414
Issues 322,338 516,825
Redemptions (654 663) {329 106)
Reclassifications to current liabilities (103,689) (487,881)
Other movements 13,745 28,564
Ending balance 1,075,548 1,497 816
b. Current debt issued and cther berrowing
For the year ended
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millians of JEY
Beginning balance 588,154 245224
|ssues 97,700 157,124
Redemplions {817 449) {340,166)
Reclassifications from non-current liabilities 103,689 487 881
Other movements (1.869) 16,081
Ending balance 150,425 564,154

In the above tables, Other movernents are mainly related to the effects of the foreign exchange results
and amortisation of debt issued and other barrowing using the EIR method.

All notes issued are guaranteed either by NHI only or by both MHI and Momura Securifies Co., Lid. (Refer
o Mote 27).

20. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss

As of
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Bonds and medium-temn notes 412,5&6 126,432
417,586 126,432
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Above figures in tables consist of current and non-current financial liabilities designated at fair value
thraugh profit or loss.

The impact of changes in own credit adjustment (Refer to Mote 7) is JPY 13 million gain during the
current reporting pericd and the cumulative balance is JPY 1,283 million loss as of 31 March 2015
(2014: JPY 1,295 million loss dunng the prior reporting pericd, which is also equal to the cumulative
balance as of 31 March 2014).

The difference between the carmying amount and the contractually due amount for the financial

Habiiities designated af fair value through profit or loss is JPY 3702 million as of 31 March 2015
{2014 JPY 1,844 million).

21. Other liabilities

As of
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Cash collateral received (Moles 23 and 27) 5810 8,130
Others 11.140 14,765
17,050 23,885

Under 1504 Credit Support Annex signed with refated padies, the Company receives cash collaleral
which is regincted for disposal from dervative counterparties related to dervative fransadions. Others
mainly include accrued interest expense and other accrued expensss,

22, Commitments and contingent liabilities

The committed loan facility to certain Nomura Group entity expired during the yvear ended 31 March 2015,
The Company had JPY 30,000 million committed loan fadlity to certain Momura Group entity of which
JPY 25 000 million was undrawn as of 31 March 2014,

The Company has JPY 262 875 milion unsettled loan commitments as of 31 March 2015 (2014 JPY
740,975 million).

23. Risk management

The Company’s risk management activities involve both the assessment and transfer of certain risks
which the Company must manage. The most important types of risk are market risk, credit risk, liquidity
nsk and operational risk, Market risk includes currency nisk, price risk, and interest rate risk.

The Cempany's primary objective is to act as a financing vehicle for the Nomura Group. To this end,
the Company issues debt with retums linked to a variety of different indices including but not limited to
equities, interest rate, foreign exchange, credit and commodities. The Company actively manages the
resultant risk using derivative financial instruments with the intention of eliminating significant market
risk arising from such instruments. The Company transacts these denvative instruments solely with
other entities within the Momura Group.

The Company's financial instruments include loan advances, cash collateral deposited to or received

from other entities within the Nomura Group, debt issued and other borrowing, finandcial instruments
designated at fair value through profit or loss and dervatives,

Group Risk Appetite

Momura Group has determined the maxdimum level and types of risk that it is willing to assume in
pursuit of its strategic objectives and business plan and has aticulated this in its Risk Appetite
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Statement. This document is jointly submitted by the Chief Risk Officer ("CRO") and the Chief
Financial Officer ("CFO”) ta the Executive Management Board ("EMB”™) for approval.

The Risk Appetite Statement provides an aggregated view of risk and includes capital adequacy and
balance sheet measures, liquidity risk, market and credit risk, operational risk, and model risk, and
consists of gquantitative medrics and qualitative statements. It is subject to regular monitoring and
breach escalation as appropriate by the owner of the relevant risk appetite statem ent.

Momura Group's Risk Appetite Statement is required to be reviewed annually by the EME but it is
reviewed on an ad-hoc basis If necessary, and must specifically be reviewed fallowing any significant
changes in Momura Group's strateqy. Risk appetite underping all additional aspects of Momura
Group's risk management framework,

| Risk b ement Structu

Upon delegation from the EMB, the Group Integrated Risk Management Committee ("GIRMC™)
deliberates on or determines important matters conceming integrated risk management of Momura
Group to assure the sound and effective management of its businesses, The GIRMC establishes
Momura Group's risk appetite and a framework of integrated rsk management consistent with
Momura Group's nsk appetite. The GIRMC supervises Momura Group's risk management by
establishing and operating its sk management framework. The GIRMC reports the status of key risk
management issues and any other matters deemed necessary by the committee chairman to the
Board of Director and the EMB.

In addition, the GIRMC, upon delegation from the EMEBE, has established the Risk Management Policy.
deseribing Momura Group's overall Ask management framework including the fundamental risk
management principles followed by Nomura Group.

Upon delegation from the GIRMC, GRMC deliberates on or determines, based on strategic risk
allocation and risk appetite determined by the GIRMC, important matters conceming market, credit or
reputational risk management of Momura Group in order to assure the sound and effective
management of Nomura Group's businesses. The GRMC reports to the GIRMC the status of
discussions at its meetings and any other matters as deemed necessary by the committee chairman.

The Company's qualitative and quantitative risk management
Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss ansing from fluctuations in the value of assets and liabilities (induding off
balance shesl items) due to fluctuations in market risk factors (interast rates, foreign exchange rates,
prices of securities and others). Effeclive management of this risk requires the ability to analyse a
complex and constantly changing global market envirchment, identify problematic trends and ensure
that appropriate action is taken in a timely manner, The Company seeks to minimise the market risks
by entering into derivative agreements to economically hedge the expesures in its loans and medium
term notes. The maturity structure of the derivatives cormesponds with the maturity of the medium term
notes being hedged.

Interest Rate and Equity Frice Risk
It is the policy of the Company to hedge interest rate and equity price exposures via the use of interest

rate derivatives, cross cumency derivatives or equity swaps.

The Company raises funding with shor-term or long-term bomowings through the issuance of medium
term notes. The Company funds the desired currencies at both fixed and floating rates of interest and
then uses both interest rate and currency derivatives to generate the desired interest rate hedge
profile. This will involve matching the coupon dates on both the assets and liabilities where relevant.

Applying the above hedging policy on interest rate exposure, the Company does not have a significant
interest rate exposure as of 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014,
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Currency Exposure

Currency exposures are comprised of the monetary assets and monetary liabilities of the Company
that are not denominated in the functional currency of the Company, All materal net cumency
exposure arising from activiies of the Company is actively hedged using foreign exchange related
derivatives andfor currency derivatives.

It is the policy of the Company not to trade cumency exposure; therefore, all curency dervative
transactions are entered into with the intention of hedging only.

Applying the above hedging policy on curmrency exposure, the Company does nol have a significant
currency exposure as of 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014,

Credit Risk

Credit risk managemert

Credit risk s the risk of loss arsing from an obligor or counterparty's default, insclvency or
administrative proceeding which results in the obligor's fadlure to meet its contractual obligations in
accordance with agreed terms. This incudes both on and off-balance sheel exposures, It is also the
risk of loss arising through a credit valuation adjustment associated with deterioration in the
creditworthiness of a counterparty.

As the Company's financial instruments are traded exclusively with the Nomura Group, credit risk is
minimised.

Credit guality of financial assefs

The Company considered the credit rating of the Momura Group as the same credit rating recenved by
MHI from Standard & Foor's Intemational LLC which is BEB+. As of the Managing Direclors’ reporting
date, there has been no change in the aforementioned credit rating.

The Company has no financial assets that are either past due or impaired.

Creat risk exposure

The table below shows the Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk as of the statement of
financial posiion date. Cerain off-balance sheet instruments which expose the Company to a nisk of
loss due to default by the parties underlying these contracts are also disclosed.

As of
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JFY Millions of JPY
Dervative financial assets (Note 14) 25,655 117,795
Commitments to extend credit (Mote 22) - 25,000
Commitments far undrawn loan - -
Cash and cash equivalents 550 2479
Other debtors (Mote 13) 1,671,284 2128334
Cash collateral received (Mote 21) {5.910) {8,130}
Total exposure to credit risk 1,751,579 2,264 478

Credit Risk Mitigation Technigues

As mentioned previously, the Company enters into [SDA master agreements or equivalent
agresments (called “Master Metting Agresments”) to mitigate its exposure to cradit loss, The impacdt of
offsetting financial assets and financial Habilfies which are subject to these agreements is not
reflected in the statement of financal position.

Impaired financial assels

The Company assesses whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset is impaired at
each statement of financial position date as described in Mote 2.3 e) above.
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Al loans are transacted with the Nomura Group. Mo impairm ent loss on leans has been recognised for
the year ended 31 March 2015 or the prior periods.

Liguidity Risk

Liguidity Risk Management

The Momura Group defines liquidity risk as the Ask of losses arsing from difficulty in securing the
necessary funding or from a significantly higher cost of funding than normal levels due to deteroration
of the MNomura Group's creditworthiness or deterioration in market conditions. This risk could arise
from Momura-specific or market-wide svents such as inabilty to access the secured or unsecured
debt markets, a deterioration in Momura Group eredit ratings, a failure o manage unplanned changes
in funding requirements, a failure to liquidate assets quickly and with minimal loss in value, or
changes in regulatory capital restrictions which may prevent the free flow of funds between different
Momura group entities, Liquidity risk management policy is based on liquidity risk appetite which the
GIRMC formulates upon delegation by the EMBE. Nomura Group's liquidity risk management, under
market-wide stress and in addition, under stress to Nomura Group credit, seeks to ensure enough
continuous Hquidity to meet all funding requirements and unsecured debt cbligations across one year
and one month periods respectively without raising funds through unsecured funding or the liquidation
of assets,

The Momura Group has in place a number of Liquidity Risk Management fram eworks that enable the
Momura Group to achieve its primary Bquidity objective, These framewaorks include (1) Centralized
Control of Residual Cash and Maintenance of Liquidity Portfolio; (2) Appropriate Funding and
Diversification of Funding Sources and Maturties Cammensurate with the Composition of Assets; (3)
Management of Credit Lines to Nomura Group Enfities; (4) Implementation of Liquidity Stress Tests;
and (5) Contingency Funding Plan,

The EMB has the authority to make decisions concerning the Nomura Group liquidity management.
The CFO of NHI has the operational authonty and responsibility over the Nomura Group's liquidity
management based on dedsions made by the EMB.

The Company is fully integrated into the Momura Group's Liquidity Risk Management frameworks
given its primary role as the funding vehicle of the Nomura Group.

The matunty profile and sources of funding of the Company are actively monitored and managed by
Global Treasury of the Nomura Group to avoid any concentration of funding by maturity and source.
The distrbution of sources of funding and their maturity profile are actively managed in order to
ensure access to funds and to avold a concentration of funding at any one time or from any one
source,
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The tables below are based on undiscounted cash flows thus they do nat reconcile to the statement of finanaal posttion except for the fimancial s
valke fhrough proft or loss reported under on demand category. Where the amount te be paid or the amount to be recelved is not fixed, the amount di
by reference to the conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.

The embedded denvatives which are recorded under Demvative financial assets and Demvative financial fabiites are not separated from the hybnd f

the purpose of presenting the contractual maturity of the financial instruments.

Approximately 50% (2014: 57%) of the below mentioned financial liabilties have the feature of either eardy termination or redemption,

Financial liabllites

At31 March 2016

Diebl I5<wed and other borowing

Fenanciaf liabilties designated ot far valus through
ol of 1084

Cithar commimants

Total undigcounted financial liabilitis e

Total exposure to ilquidity risk

At 31 March 2014

Dett Iszared and other bomowing

Firanciod labilgies cirsignaled o far vakes through
proft of oS

Othar commitrmaents

Total undiscounted financial liabilities

Total exposure to llguidity sk

Less than 30 3= 91 days 1=6 Later than

O demand _days B0 days =1 ywar years 5 ylairs

JPY mill JF mil JPY mil S mil P mil JPY mil

38480 20076 128,746 618,552 951844

140 G2 520 a7 5062 126,580 174514

- 121,740 ol 851 0274 - -

140,984 160,749 121,134 184 062 T4T 432 1,131 468
140,584 160,749 121,134 184 062 747 432 [RELF

Le#ss than 30 3= 21 days 1 =5 Later than

On demand days 804d =1 year years § years

JPY mil JP mill JPY mill S mil JPY mil JPY mill

24,511 a0, 169 455 058 BTE AN 1,333 112

18,110 175 M3 1577 113,288 =

25,000 388 500 19,674 132504

43,110 413188 380 488 532,169 791,720 1,533,112

43,110 413165 360,456 EEFRE] TE1.720 =R
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The table below shows the maturity profile of the Company's financial dervatives, The analysis into maturity groupings is based on the remaining pel
maturity date.

Financial derivatives

At 31 March 2015 Less than 30 | o1 days 16 Later than
On demand _days 90 days =1 year years 5 years
JPY mil JF mill JPY mil JFY mil SJEY mil JPY mil
Met-settled financial derivatives
Ret-seftlad denvatives held for trading 2 3182 6137 27 .56 114 160 233394
Total undiscounted net-settied financial
derivatives . 3192 &,167 2T 5A2 114,160 233204

Gross-settied financial derivatives

Conraches] amounts redesnvalile - b 33 S0TR33 13, 265 SEAG2 T422

Confrachusl amounts payabla . [333 788} fdiET S8 | (13,84 2) {50 02T ) [TOEST)

Total undiscounted gross settled

financial derdvatives - 45 444 15,058 {BTT} 26 435 8 TEE

Totad undiscounted financial dervative - 48638 Pl 26685 140 595 20088

At 31 March 2014 Less than 30 M- 81 days 1-6 Later than
@n demand _days 0 days =1 year _years & years

JPY milk JFY mil JEY mill JPY il JPY mil JPY il

Met-settied financial derivatives

HNet-seflad denvalives hald for radimg x 2400 1,373 30042 117,525 20443

Total undiscounted net-Settied Mnancial

derivatives - 3400 7.373 30,542 117,625 349443

Gross-settled financial derivatives

Contractial amounts recenvabls . 3448 608 499 85,540 53,347 85,015

Confractuzal amounis pavahils - [318 9583} {607 04 5] [B1 TED) {20 7R3} [54.100)

Total undiscounted gross settled financial

derivatives - {6,535) 5,564 & TED 23814 11,916

Tatal undiscounted financial dedvative . 12,135) 12927 37,702 141 638 361368
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The Nomura Group defines operational risk {the “Operational Risk™) as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems of from external events. It excludes
strategic risk (the nsk of loss as a result of poor strategic business decisions), but includes the sk of
breach of legal and regulatory requirements, and the risk of damage to Nomura Group's reputation if
caused by an operational nsk.

The Momura Group adapts the industry standard “Three Lines of Defence” for the management of
operational risk, comprising the following elements:

1) 1=t Line of Defence: The business which owns and manages s nsks

2) 2nd Line of Defence: The Operational Risk Management ("ORM") function, which defines and
co-ordinates the operational risk strategy and framework and provides challenge to the 1st Line of
Defence

3) 3rd Line of Defence: Intemal and External Audit, who provide independent assurance

The governing body is GIRMC. With delegated authority from the EMB. GIRMC provides formal
oversight over the management of operational rigk.

The Momura Group edtablished an ORM framework in order to allow to identify, assess, manage,
maonitor and repert on Operational Risk. Operational risk appetite is defined through a mixture of
qualitative appetite statements and quantitative measures utilizing key components of the ORM
fram ework.

The ORM framework consists of 1) Infrastructure of the framework, 2) Products and Services and 3)
Outputs, The Company is fully integrated into the Momura Group’s ORM fram ework.

24. Fair Value
Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities

Comparisan of the carrying amounts and fair values of financial mstruments
The carrying values of current financial assets and current financial liabilities measured at amortised
cost faidy approximate their fair values, since they are short-term in nature and contain minimal credit
risk. Below tables include comparison of the carrying amounts and fair values of non-current loans
and advances to affiliates and non-current debt issued and ather borrowing.

As of March 2015

Carrying
amount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Millions of  Millions of
Millions of JPY JPY JPY
Loans and advances to affiliates 440,404 4438 458 -
Debt issued and other borrowing 1,075,548 1,012,828 1,430

As of March 2014

Carmying
amaount Fair value
Level 2 Level 3
Milliens of  Millions of
Millions of JPY JPY JPY
Loans and advances to affiliates 488 238 481,731 -
Debt issued and other borrowing 1,497,816 1,366,278 7011
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For financial assets carried at amortised cost which have a maturity of more than one year from the
reporting date, fair value is detemrmined based on discounted cash flows uging the prevailing rates
from the active markets, Credit risk and senicrity of the relevant loans are taken into consideration in
determining the fair value of the loan.

For financial liabilities camed at amortised cost having a maturity of more than one year from the
statement of financial position date, fair value is determined based on price quotations at the reporting
date. These quotations are based on techniques for which all inputs that have a significant effect on
the fair value are observable either directly or indirectly, as well as techniques which use inputs not
based on observable market data.

Fair Value Hierarchy
The following tables present information abouwt the Company's financial assets and financial liabilties

measured at fair value within the fair value hierarchy on a recurring basis, based on the transparency
of inputs into the valuation techniques used by the Company to detemmine such fair values.,
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As of
March 2018 March 2014
Camang Valus Lawel 1 Level 3 Lewsl 3 Carrang Valus Lawal 1 Lerved
Milorts of JPY  Milong of JJPY  Mellons of JJPY Milans of JPY Milliong of JPY Blhons of JPY  Millioasg o
Financial ageste measwred ot
fuir value
Dhsries Bt i fnncind g6t s 83,655 - 44 235 4140 117,795 - 3
Foreign emchange
refgied dervatiies 15,073 . 15,007 il Ha61 .
Interest rate danvatves 55 554 : 17,153 39,5010 o5 741 1
Equaty derivatives 10,484 - BETD 1,81 9,568 -
Commodity derivatives’ 85 - 85 - -
Cradil darivativgs 1058 - 3030 4 2025 -
55 G55 - d&;ﬂﬁ 414X 117 785 E ,;I
Financia liabities measured at
fadr value
Doisrtestoes Bnincia labadCids 183,030 - 41,381 41,649 114 562 - 3
Foreign emchange
refsed denvalives 18,7483 - 1817 ] 15318 - 1
IFbaras] rald denvasies 49,534 E g8 39,739 BT ITG g 1
Equity darvatives 11,685 - Q572 1,814 9433 -
Commodity dertvatives’ 90 544 - 90544 . .
Credt danvatives 3,063 . 30ad 8 2052
Fmancial habdites designated &
lar walue throuigh prolt or loss 417 586 = 400 260 17,35 128432 = 12
L‘CI_‘I'.'.E‘-I:G - 31641 3,810 2055 224 = 1'.‘;

1) D 1o increas o ransaction and SignibCancs, & New produd hpe, Commoddy dartatves, 5 addad 10 tha abows Labiles lor the yeer endsd 31 March 2045 {Refer 1o note 14) JPY 18
Commoddy denvaives under denvaive bnanoa assets and JPY 23T mikon of Level 2 Commoaily dervelves under dervative financeal babiktes are included in Sguily devaalves for th
20ma
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Reconciliation of recurming fair value measurements categorised within Level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy

The following table shows a recondliation of all movements in the fair value of finandal insfruments
categorised within Level 3 between the beginning balances and the ending balances as of the reporting

period.

March 2015
Financial iabilities
designated at fair
Denvative Derivative value through

financial assets  financial liabilities profit o loss

Millions of JPY Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance 79,702 79,797 -
Total gains/{losses) in the
statement of comprehensive
imcome {26,565) (27.697) {330%
Mew Issues - - 17,750
Sattlements {11,323 {10.532) {94}
Transfers in 366 B41 -
Transfers out (760} (760} -
Ending balance 41 _,-@.'l 41,649 17,326
Total unrealised gains/{losses)
for the pedod included in the
statement of comprehensive
imcomee for instruments held at
the end of the reporting period 2,280 {1, B84} 424

March 2014
Dervative Derivatve

financial assets  financial liabilities

Milliens of JPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance 95,178 96,974
Total gains/(losses) in the
statement of comprehensive
imcome 13,105 11.042
New lssues - -
Setlements (28,028) (27, 744)
Transfers in 691 705
Transfers out (1,246} {1,180)
Ending balance 79,702 79,797
Total unrealised gains/{losses)
for the period included in the
statement of comprehensive
income for instruments held at
the end of the reporting period 6,706 (5, 756}

Total gains and losses on finandal demvatives included in the above table are included under Net
frading ircomafioss) in the statement of comprehensive income. Total gains and losses on financial
faksdities designated at fair value through profit or loss included in the above table are included under Met
gaind{loss) on financial Kabilties designated at fair value through proft or loss in the statement of
comprehensive income,
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During the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014, there were no financial assets and financial
iabilities recognised at fair value under Leved 1. Thus, no transfers cccurred between Level 1 and Level 2.

The Company assumes that all transfers of financial instruments from one level to another level within
the fair value hierarchy occur at the beginning of the relevant period in which the transfer takes place,
Amounts reported above therefore represent the fair value of the finandcal instruments at the
beginning of the relevant quarter when the transfer was made.

Valuation techniques

The Company has only overthe-counter ("OTC") derivatives, including bifurcated embedded
derivatives, which are valued using intermnal models using market transactions and other market
evidence whenever possible, including market-based inputs to models, model calibration to market
dearing transactions, broker or dealer quotations, or alternative pricing sources with reasonable levels
of price transparency. Valuation techniques include simple discounted expected cash flow techniques,
Black-Scholes and Monte Carle simulations. OTC dernivatives, including bifurcated embedded
derivatives, are dassified within Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy when all of the significant inputs
can be corroborated to market evidence.

Denvatives that are valued using models with significant uncbservable inputs such as comelation,
long-dated volatility, or other uncbservable inputs are classified within Level 3. Examples of derivatives
dlassified as Level 3 by the Company include exclic interest rate derivatives, exolic foreign exchange
derivatives, exotic equity dervatives, exotic derivalives including a combination of interest rate, foreign
exchange and equity nsks and certain other transactions including long-dated or exolic credst
derivatives.

Valuation technigues may rely on parameters which are not observable in the market due to an
absence of equivalent, current, market transactions or observable market data. These wvaluation
techniques are based on assumplions. As a result, the fair value calculated using these valuation
techniques will change if the underying assumptions change.

For the year ended 31 March 2015, a total of JPY 366 milion of financial assets (2014: JPY 621
millian} and a total of JPY 841 million of finanaal habilities (2014, JPY 705 milion) were transferred
into Level 3. On the financial assets side the transferred amount comprised primarnily JPY 283 million
of interest rate swaps (2014: JPY 5896 million) which were transfered into Level 3 because certain
volatilities and comelations became uncbservable or the significance of unocbservable parameters
increased. On the financial liabilities side the transferred amounts comprised primanly JPY 758 million
of interest rate swaps (2014 JPY 710 million) which were transferred into Level 3 because certain
volatilities and comelations became uncbservable or the significance of uncbservable parameters
increased.

For the year ended 31 Mareh 2015, a total of JPY 760 milion of financial azsets (2014 JPY 1,246
million) and a total of JPY 750 million of financial liabilities (2014; JPY 1,180 million) were transferred
ocut of Level 3. On the financial assets side the transfered amount comprised primarly JPY 422
million of interest rate swaps and JPY 309 milion of equity swaps (2014 JPY 380 millien and JPY
839 milion, respectively) which were transferred out of Level 3 because certain wolatilites and
correlations became observable or the significance of unobservable parameters decreased. On the
financial liabilities side the transferred amounts comprised primarnly JPY 422 million of interest rate
swaps and JPY 300 million of equity swaps (2014 JPY 398 milion and JPY 839 million, respactively)
which were transferred cut of Level 3 becauss cerdain volatilities and comelations became observable
of the ggnificance of unobservable parameters increased.

Valuation processes

The Company is fully integrated into the Nomura Group's governance framework which mandates
determination or validation of a fair value measurement by control and support functions independent
of the businesses assuming the risk of the financial instrument in order o ensure the appropriateness
of any fair value measurement of a finandal instrument used within these financal statements
including those classified as Level 3 within the fair value hierarchy.
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The functions within Nomura Group for either defining, implementing o maintaining valuation policies
and procedures are as follows:

s  The Product Control Valuations Group ("PCVGE") within Momura's Finance Department has
primary responsibilty to determine and implement wvaluation policies and procedures in
connection with determination of fair value measurements. In particular, this group will ensure
that valuation policies are documented for each type of financial instrument. Nomura Group's
businesses price the financial instruments of the Company, the PCVG independently verifies or
validates these prices. In the event of a difference in opinion or where the estimate of fair value
requires judgement, the valuation used within these financial statements is made by senior
managers independent of the businesses, This group reports to the Global Head of Product
Contred and ultimately to the CFO of Nomura Group;

# The Accounting Policy Group within Momura's Finance Depariment defines the Group's
accounting pelicies and precedures, incuding those associated with determination of fair value.
This group reports to the Global Head of Accounting Palicy and ultimately to the CFO of Nomura
Group; and

*  The Global Model Validation Group ("MWVGE") within Nomura's Risk Management Department
validates the appropriateness and consistency of pricing models used to detemine fair value
measurements independently of those who design and build the models. The group reports to
the CRO.

Independert price verfication rocesses

The key objective of the independent price verification processes within Nomum Group is to verify the
appropriateness of fair value measurements applied to all finandal instrurments within Nomura Group.
In applying these control processes, observable inputs are used whenever possible and when
uncbservable inputs are necessary, the processes seek to ensure the valuation technigue and inputs
are appropriate, reasonable and consistently applied.

The independent price verification processes aim to venfy the fair value of all positions to external
levels on & regular bagis, The process will involve obtaining data such as trades, marks and prices
from internal and external sources and examining the impact of marking the intemal pesitions at the
external prices, Margin disputes within the collateral process will also be investigated to determine if
there is any impact on valuations.

Where third-party pricing information sourced from brokers, dealers and consensus pricing services is
used as part of the price verfication process, consideration is given as to whether that information
reflects actual recent market transactions or prices at which transactions involving identical or similar
fimancial instruments are currently executable. If such transactions or prices are not available, the
financial instrument will generally be classified in Level 3.

Where there is a lack of cbservable market information around the inputs used in a fair value
measurement, then the PCVGE and the WVGE will assess the reasonableness of inputs used,
considering available information including comparable products, surfaces, curves and past trades.
Additional valuation adjustments may be taken for the uncerainty in the inputs used, such as
comelation and where appropriate trading desks may be asked to execute trades to evidence market
levels.

GQuantitative information regarding =ignificant unobservable inputs and assumptions

The following table presents information about the significant unobservable inputs and assumptions
used for financial instruments dassified as Level 3. These financial instruments will also typically
include chservable valuation inputs (i.e. Level 2 valuation inputs) which are not included in the table
and are also often hedged using financial instruments which are classified in Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.
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The following table shows valuation techniques and inputs used in the fair value measurements of Lewvel
3 financial assets and financial liabilities:

Falr value at
31 March 2015
in Millions of JPY
Significant Range of
Valuation unabsenable valuation
Assets Liabiliies  technique(s) inputs inputs™
Forelgn exchangs
related derivatives &5 -1 DCFiCptian Volatiities 15.05-15.93%
Model
Irterest rate dorvatives 39,501 39730 DCFOptian Interest rates 0.79-3.20%
Mode Volatilities 13.73-31.52%
Correlations -0.01-0.99
{-1.0to0 1.00
Equity derivatives 1.814 1,814 DCFOptien Dividend yeld 0-5.73%
Model Wolatlities 16.27-47.53%
Comelations -0.75-091
-1.0t0 1.00
Cradit derivalives a9 39 DCF Correlations 0.750.75
(=1.0t0 1.0}
Financial liabilities - 17,328 DEFCption Interest rates 0482 88%
designated at fair value Model Volatilities 14 06-28.958%
through profit or loss Cosmelations 035098
— _ -1.0te 1.0
Total 41,420 58,975
Fair value at
31 March 2014
in Millions of JPY
Significant Range of
Valuation unobservable valuation
Assels Liabiliies  technigque(s) inputs inputs'”
Foreign exchange
related deriatives 49 49 DCF Volatiities 18.48-19.58%
Interest rate derivatives 77,490 77,588 DCF Interest rates 0E7-517%
‘\Volatiities 10.61-23.53%
Correlations -0.04-0.98
i-1.0te 1.0
Equity derivatives 2,05 2082  Option models Dividend yield 0.00-3.08%
Volatiities 15.27-55.50%
Comelations -0.78-0.54
(-1.0ta 1.0)
Cradit dervatives 68 ] DCF Credit spreads 0.221.33%
Recovery rates 20.00-20.00%
Cometations 0.750.75
{-1.0to 1.00
Total 79,702 79,797
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1] Range information = provided ino perc entages, cosfficients and maulbples and represents the highest amd lowest leval
sgnifcant unobsersable valuaton input used 1o value that type of finandial mstrument. A wide dSpersion in the rangs does not
necessanly reflect increased uncerlainty or subgectiaby in the waluation input and is typicaly just a consequence of the diferent
charatienstics of the hnanoasl nstruments themsalves

Sensitivity of fair value to changes in unobservable inputs

Given that the valuation of Level 2 financial instruments fluctuate in response to a variety of factors,
including, but not limited to general market sentiment, credit, interest rate, foreign exchange and
cemrelation risk, curent values may continue to decrease if conditions deteriorate further. Conversaly,
should conditions improve, an increase in the value of the Level 3 portfolio would be expected.
Heowewver, management does not anticipate a significant impact in the net fair value of Level 3 financial
instruments.

As the Company enters inta derivative transactions to hedge its exposures in loans and medium term
notes, the increase or decrease in the value of the Level 3 portfolio will not significantly impact its
profit and equity, Hedging derrvative instruments offset the positions arising from the derivatives which
are embedded in the debt instruments and limit the sensitivity of fair value to changes in uncbservable
inputs related to these finandal instruments,

For each class of finandial instrument described in the above tables, changes in each of the significant
unobservable inputs and assumplions used by the Company will impact upon the determination of a
fair value measurement for the financial instrument. The sensitivity of these Level 3 fair value
measurements to changes in unchsernvable inputs and interrelationships belween those inputs are
described below:

Devivatives—Where the Company is long the underlying risk of a derivative, significant increases
(decreases) in the underying of the dervative, such as interest rates or credit spreads in isolation or
significant decreases (increases) in dividend yields would result in a significantly higher (lower) fair
value measurement. Where the Company is shor the underlying risk of a derivative, the impact of
these changes would have a converse effect on the fair value measurements reported by the
Company.

Where the Company is long optonalty, recovery rates or corelation, significant increases
{decreases) in volatilities, recovery rates or correlation will generally result in a significantly higher
(loweer) fair value measurement, Where the Company is short optionality, recovery rates or comelation,
the impact of these changes would have a converse effect on the fair value measurem ents.

Day 1 gains and losses

Gains and losses generated from the use of valuation technigues with significant uncbservable
parameters are deferred over the life of the contract until parameters become cbservable or when the
nstrument is derecognised. Changes in fair value after ingeption are recognised in the profit or loss
aceount. The total fair value attiibutable to these finandal instruments that is yet to be recognised in the
prafit or loss account as of the statem ent of finandal postion date is JFY 211 milion gain (2014; JPY 128
million less). The following table shows a reconciliation of movements in the day 1 gains and losses
between the beginning balances and the ending balancas,

March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JPY Millions of JPY
Beginning balance gaini{loss) {126) (124)
New transactions 32 (84)
Ampunts recognised in profit or loss during the year 25 82
Ending balance gain/(loss) 211 {126)
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23, Offsatting of financial assets and financial liabilities

The following table provides a summary of financial assets and financial liabilities subject to the
Master Metting Agreements and similar agreements,

As of 31 March 2015
Millions of JFY

Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
financial position

Gross
amounts Amounts
offsetin  presented

Gross amounts of the Iry the
recognised financial balance balance Financial Cash Net
assetsiiabilities” sheet sheet instruments”  collateral™  Amount
Derivative
financial assets 63,227 - 53,227 {56,505) {5.910) 812
Loans and advances
to affiliates 143,518 - 143,518 (5,803) = 137,615
Other assets 1.280 - 1,280 (1,280) - -
Total financial
assels 208,023 - 208,025 (63,688) (5,910) 138,427
Dervative financial
liakilities 144,680 - 144 650 (B3,6a8) (80,992) -
Other iabllities - . . - . -
Total financial
liahilities 144,680 - 144,680 (63,688) (80,992) -
As of 31 March 2014
Millions of JPY
Related amounts not set
off in the statement of
financial position
Gross
amounts Amounts
offsetin  presented
Gross amounts of the inthe
recognised firnancial balance balance Financial Cash MHet
assets/ abllities’ sheet sheet instruments”™  collateral™  Amount
Denvative
financial assets 49,510 - 48,510 (30.8977) {8.420) 1,113
Loans and
advances to affiliates 200,894 - 280,984 (1.017) - 289877
Total financial
assels 340,504 . 240,504 (40,994) (B, 420) 291,000
Dervative
financial liabilities 82,953 - 82 953 (40,284) (42,659) =
_Other liabilities 710 - 710 {710} - -
Total financial
liabilities 83,663 - 83,663 (40,984) (42,669) -
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1 The bfurcaled embedded derivatives ara exciudad

1) Fepresents amounts which are not pemmitted 10 De ofiset on the face of the balance sheet but which provegs the Company
with the right of offset in the event of counierpany default, insdvency o bankmupioy

3)  The césh collatéral recemnad aganst he postive mark o market valees of danvatives and the cash collateral pladged
towads the nagatve mark o market vislu & of desvistivis e booked under Otfee farbaes and Olhar aSsels respeciney

The Company entered into IS0A Master Agreements with all derivative counterparties which grant the
Company the right to set off in the event of counterparty default, insclvency or bankruptcy. The
Company also entered into On Balance Sheet and Off Balance Shest Master Netting Agreements
with one of the counterparties as of 31 March 2014 which grant the Company the right to set off in the
event of counterparty defaull, insolvency or bankruptcy. These arangements reduce credit risk
exposure relative to what the credit exposure would be if the same counterparty were liable for their
gross exposures on the same underlying contracts.

Usually, netting arrangements are constituted by a master netting agreement which specifies the
general terms of the agreement between the counterparties, including information on the basis of the
netting calculation, types of collateral, the definition of default and other termination events, the
calculation of damages (on default) and documentastion required, The Master MNetting Agreement
comtains the terms and conditions by which all (or as many as possible) relevant transactions between
the counterparties are governed, Multiple indhidual transactions are subsumed under this general
master netling agreement, forming a single legal contract under which the counterparties conduct
their relevant mutual business. In addition to the mitigation of credit risk, plading indwidual
transactions under a single master netting agreement that provides for netting of transactions in scope
also helps to mitigate settlement risks associated with transacting in multiple jurisdictions or across
multiple contracts,

26. Capital management policy

The objective of the Company’s capital management policy is to ensure that the Company has an
appropriate level of capital, being issued capital and issued medium tem notes,

The Company reviews the appropriate level of capital - the determination of the level of appropriate
capital will take into consideration the financing needs and liquidity position of the Nomura Group.

Mo changes were made in the objectives, palicies or processes for managing capital during the year.

As of
March 2015 March 2014
Millions of JFY Millions of JPY

Issued and paid-up capital 5,613 7,285
Share premium 1,321 1,321
Reserve 1,789 1,117
Total issued capital 9,723 9723
Debt issued and cther bomrowing 1,225 973 2,055,970

= Mon-currant 1,075,548 1,487 B16

- Current 180,425 558,154
Financial liabilties designated at fair value through
profit or loss 417,588 126,432

- Mon-current 275041 108,322

- Current 141,645 18,110
Total issued capital and medium term notes 1,653,282 2,202,135
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27. Related parties

Same as disclosed in elsewhere of these financial statements. the Company had the following matedal
transactions with related paries during the period.

a. Transactions with the parent

i. The Company entered into loan agreements with MH| and eamed interest income of JPY
2,538 million for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: JPY 1.584 million). As of 31 March
2015, total outstanding loan to NHI amounted to JPY 444,387 million (2014 JPY 243379
millien). The outstanding balance is unsecured. Mo impalment loss on the leans and
advances to NHI has been recognised for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March
2014.

ii. The Company entered info a dealer agreement with NHI, as one of the guarantors of the
Company notes (Refer to Mote 19), whereby the Company has agreed to pay a fes (Refer to
Mote 4) based on the average outstanding amount of the notes during the relevant calculation
pericd. JPY 704 milkon guarantee fees were bocked to Fee and commission expense for the
year ended 31 March 2015 (2014; JPY 750 million). As of 31 March 2015, the guarantee fee
payable to NH| is JPY 704 million (2014: JPY 750 million).

iii. Im accordance with the Unilateral APAs (Refer to Mote 11), the Company agreed to pay the
adjustment amount resulting from the APA to MHI. The adjustment amount of JPY 2870
million (2014; JPY 6,814 milion) was booked to General and administrative expenses, As
of 31 Mareh 2015, JPY 8870 million is accrued under Other lizbilfies (2014: JPY 6014
million).

iv. The Company incurred service fee of JPY 36 million for NHI's provision of information
technology infrastructure support for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014: JPY 68 million),
This expensa is reported under General and administrative expanses in the statement of
comprehensive income. As of 31 March 2015, the serdce fee payable to MHI is JPY 18
million (2014: JPY 54 million).

b. Transactions with the Managing Directors

As of 31 March 2015, the Company had two Managing Directors who were seconded from the
Momura Group. Mo remuneration to the managing diredors was chargeable to the Company for
the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31 March 2014,

&. Transactions with other related parties

i. The Company entered into loan agreements with other related paries and earned interest
income {Refer to Mate 3). All outstanding balances are unsecured. Mo impairment loss an
the loans and advances to affiliates has been recognised for the years ended 31 March
2015 and 31 March 2014,

ii. The Company entered into denvalive fransactions with cther related paries under |SDA
Master Agreements. As of 31 March 2015, denvabve financial assets and derivative financial
liabilities with cther related parties amounted to JPY 62,580 million and JPY 144,033 million,
respectively (31 March 2014: dervative finandal assets - JPY 48,510 milion and dervative
financial liabilities - JPY 82 953 million).

iii. The Company eamed interest income from deposits placed to the current account of a related
party bank (Refer to Note 3). As of 31 March 2015, the outstanding balance deposited with
this related party bank amounted to JPY 329 million (2014 JPY 2,458 million).
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iv. As of 31 March 2015, total outstanding balance of debt issued held within the Momura Group
for liquidity or market making purposes amounted to JPY 24 838 million (2014 JPY 35,501
million),

v. The Company entered into a dealer agreement with NHI and one of the related parties in the
Memura Group, as guarantors of the Company notes (Refer to NMate 19), whereby it has
agreed to pay a fee (Refer to Mote 4) based on the average outstanding amount of the notes
during the relevant calculation period, JPY 75 million guarantee fees were charged to Fee
and commission expense for the year ended 31 March 2015 (2014; JPY 108 million). As of 31
March 2015, the guarantee fee payable {o the cther related party 15 JPY 7Smillion (20714; JPY
108 million).

vi. All the commitment fees and commission income for the years ended 31 March 2015 and 31
March 2014 are from related parties (Refer to Mote 4 and Note 22,

wii. The Company incurred service fees to cedain related parties for provision of operational
support which are reported under General and administrative expenses in the statement of
comprehensive income (Refer bo Nate 11).

Wi The Company entered into a dealer agresment with other related party who underwntes
nates issued by the Company including the noles dassified under Financial labilties
designated at fair value through proft or foss. The Company economically hedges
gructured nature of the notes by entering denvative transactions with another other refated
party. Gain or loss angng from the notes was recognized under Net gainloss) on financia!

kabilties while gain or loss ansing from derivative transactions was recognized under Nef
trading loss,
28. Events after the reporting period

Changes in the compostion of the Managing Directors
Masatomo Harigaya resigned as President and Managing Director of the Company effectrve & May 2015,

The sharehclder appointed Yuji Yamasaki as the new Presdent and Managing Director of the Company
effective 8 May 2015,

29. Other information

Auditor's report

The report of the auditors, Emst & Young Accountants LLP, is presented on page 6.

Appropriation of result - Provision in the Company’s articles of association

In accordance with Article 20 of the Company's articles of assodation, the net result shall be free at the
disposal of the General Meeting,

Appropriation of result - Management proposal

The management proposes to add the total profit for the year ended 31 March 2015 of JPY 3,488 million
to the retained eamings. This proposal has been reflected in the accounts.
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HSILI(T) = HSILI(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K-1) x
(HSI(T)/HSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]

HSILI(T):
HSILI(T-1):
K: 2
D(T,T-1): T
HIBOR:
HSI(T):
HSI(T-1):
Stamp Duty:

Q)
Q)

T-1

11 HIBOR

50

HSISI(T) = HSISI(T-1)x [1 + {-Kx (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) + (K+1) x (HIBOR/365) x D(T,T-1) - Kx (K+1)
x  (TRHSI(T)/TRHSI(T-1) - 1) x Stamp Duty } ]
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M
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50
200

L(T) = L(T-1)x [1 + {Kx (F(T/F(T-1) - 1) - (K-1) x (r/365) x D(T,T-1) } 1]

L(T):

L(T-1) :

K: 2
D(T,T-1): T
r: 91 CD
F ():

F (T-1):
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m 200

T-1
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S&P500 VIX S&P500 VIX
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
22,838.07 21,711.94 16,883.90 18,621.28 20,188.97
13,378.54 9,211.14 11,051.90 12,727.99 14,247.32
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
18,065.69 18,214.11 18,090.06 19,331.94 19,305.80 19,282.46
16,468.76 17,090.58 15,938.81 17,209.95 18,411.15 17,503.40
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
13,176.33 13,889.22 11,762.71 9,980.17 9,051.53
9,761.98 9,806.63 9,046.96 8,039.78 7,269.36
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
7,986.26 7,804.15 8,038.35 7,720.35 7,441.26 7,595.81
7,601.07 7,549.14 7,557.80 7,268.44 7,264.05 7,224.35
Bloomberg
)
200
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
337.76 392.78 301.10 280.59 266.45
198.05 195.62 216.14 203.23 206.87
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
230.21 230.49 231.34 226.37 227.28 237.97
206.87 216.89 212.32 205.31 218.07 222.20
Bloomberg
)
200
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
1,135.79 1,042.48 943.96 973.03 968.06
839.56 778.97 804.49 819.91 848.07
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
968.06 945.78 957.54 965.39 935.35 925.31
916.56 918.91 915.90 918.88 919.27 896.58
Bloomberg
)
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
12,971.01 19,777.96 18,165.96 21,287.61 17,282.81
8,808.70 11,086.39 12,791.36 11,789.05 13,008.66
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
14,299.62 15,962.83 17,282.81 18,661.12 18,003.59 16,985.62
13,584.75 13,748.17 14,977.00 16,410.16 16,245.72 15,419.73
)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
10,535.13 9,012.31 7,605.91 7,440.81 6,843.90
8,359.72 6,516.57 6,326.39 5,743.28 5,864.94
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
6,665.79 6,621.64 6,324.80 6,003.73 6,009.88 6,162.63
6,494.95 6,131.55 5,864.94 5,616.84 5,713.00 5,875.33
)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
11,718.16 14,556.61 14,438.04 19,673.33 19,692.15
5,937.16 7,276.33 7,311.98 12,373.64 7,251.21
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
17,448.31 14,473.89 11,188.39 7,071.43 7,413.11 7,484.99
12,231.79 11,124.90 7,251.21 4,763.14 5,440.34 5,598.05
)
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
11,679.16 9,667.17 8,485.15 6,317.46 7,331.00
8,884.13 7,037.92 6,239.43 4,699.46 4,631.99
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
5,813.41 6,015.67 7,331.00 8,762.89 8,099.16 7,616.05
4,904.48 5,318.60 5,965.55 7,342.56 6,704.50 6,632.40
)
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
- - 115,929.82 128,730.71 97,741.36
- - 46,875.39 47,519.52 38,902.54
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
51,844.14 54,012.12 54,450.26 50,080.55 41,355.74 35,811.97
40,132.57 45,894.18 46,004.36 38,866.23 34,428.29 30,813.87
Bloomberg
)
10.
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
572.60 694.10 741.81 1,090.59 1,279.52
408.49 467.23 591.03 705.91 939.37
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
1,187.51 1,250.86 1,279.52 1,256.84 1,301.26 1,310.90
1,024.33 1,184.05 1,146.13 1,154.35 1,180.66 1,216.20
Bloomberg
)
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11
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
1,098.31 943.64 795.56 707.10 588.78
900.17 796.16 699.04 548.22 486.78
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
509.06 509.81 515.08 510.16 504.35 493.73
549.17 494 .22 486.78 490.13 478.38 476.41
Bloomberg
)
12
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
506.45 525.01 407.47 1,052.95 1,035.34
34456 363.73 289.45 415.04 635.00
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
920.46 968.18 970.90 916.89 885.11 881.88
823.63 883.85 866.96 872.35 863.89 854.62
Bloomberg
)
13 STOXX 50
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
2,700.05 2,895.07 3,484.75 4,677.86 5,150.56
2,003.27 2,258.02 2,498.82 3,521.87 3,844.01
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
4,862.86 5,150.56 5,121.08 5,027.17 5,048.56 5,024.51
4,435.40 4,901.46 4,720.55 4,762.48 4,887.60 4,905.21
Bloomberg
)
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14 Nifty ( )
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
631.64 673.87 661.31 619.83 557.57
474.69 489.00 538.10 520.21 404.60
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
445.50 415.30 434.00 431.25 412.20 423.50
415.40 404.60 406.15 391.25 395.65 391.65
India Index Services & Products Limited
)
15 Nifty @ ) ( )
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
3,318.95 3,112.66 2,331.45 2,435.45 3,989.95
1,952.22 1,516.95 1,572.14 1,717.96 2,095.79
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
3,769.20 3,989.95 3,963.35 4,264.20 4,180.70 4,262.55
3,278.25 3,770.55 3,470.95 3,511.95 3,849.25 3,639.85
India Index Services & Products Limited
)
16 S&P500 ( )
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
193.69 210.38 243.39 315.11 366.97
157.64 175.95 207.86 244 .59 292.78
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
348.52 361.88 366.97 365.32 370.17 370.65
322.69 347.96 349.07 352.15 356.54 357.32
Bloomberg
)
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17 S&P REIT ( )
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
321.59 328.02 410.26 476.09 457.74
25474 277.57 279.53 379.57 387.58
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
446.74 456.45 457.74 482.61 480.20 481.30
430.89 444 _46 450.81 456.34 471.17 466.22
Bloomberg
)
18 70
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
21,422.91 20,882.10 20,381.91 29,269.04 33,197.05
17,656.25 16,870.17 16,657.74 20,095.17 25,848.62
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12
30,719.58 32,225.19 33,197.05 32,694.10 35,199.69 36,824.82
27,204.62 31,136.96 30,867.42 30,917.41 32,234.27 35,252.16

Bloomberg

)

19 S&P500 VIX

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

141,918.203 222,444.172 233,875.313 423,374.969 565,724.813

45,555.301 56,324.219 79,734.570 213,519.953 308,462.031
2014 2014 2014 2015 2015 2015
10 11 12

484,078.063 | 477,954.438 | 485,188.750 | 382,514.750 | 399,783.531 | 429,762.719

308,462.031 | 415,555.813 | 343,801.125 | 308,617.688 | 319,986.031 | 370,961.250

Bloomberg

)
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2014 2015
2014 2015
EU-IFRS
2015
31 8,219
0.5
2015 31
411
Vio

VGBA
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14
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2015 31

20 EU-IFRS
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To: the Shareholder of Nomura Europe Finance N.V.

We have audited the financial statements
2014/2015 of Nomura Europe Finance N.V. (the
“Company”), based in Amsterdam, the
Netherlands.

In our opinion the financial statements give a
true and fair view of the financial position of the
Company for the year ended 31 March 2015,
and of its result and its cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by
the European Union (“EU - IFRS”) and with Part
9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.

The financial statements comprise:
The statement of financial position for the
year ended 31 March 2015;
The statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;
The statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;
The statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and
The notes comprising a summary of the
significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

We conducted our audit in accordance with
Dutch law,including the Dutch Standards on
Auditing. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the section
“Our responsibilities for the audit of the financial
statements" of our report.

We are independent of The Company in
accordance with the Verordening inzake de
onafhankelijkheid van accountants bij assurance
- opdrachten (ViO) and other relevant
independence regulations in the Netherlands.
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Furthermore, we have complied with the
Verordening gedrags - en beroepsregels
accountants (VGBA).

We believe the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.
The materiality affects the nature, timing and
extent of aur audit procedures and the
evaluation of the effect of identified
misstatements on our opinion.

Based on our professional judgment we
determined the materiality for the financial
statements as a whole at JPY 8,219 million. The
materiality is based on 0,5% of the issued debt.
We have also taken into account misstatements
and/or possible misstatements that in our
opinion are material for the users of the financial
statements for qualitative reasons.

We agreed with the managing directors that
misstatements in excess of JPY 411 million,
which are identified during the audit, would be
reported to them, as well as smaller
misstatements that in our view must be reported
on gqualitative grounds.

Key audit matters are those matters that,in our
professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial
statements. We have communicated the key
audit matters to the managing directors. The key
audit matters are not a comprehensive reflection
of all matters discussed.
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These matters were addressed in the context of
our audit of the financial statements as a whole
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

We consider the fair value of the derivatives
portfolio as disclosed in note 14 to the financial
statements as a key audit matter, due to the
relative size of the related account as compared
to the total balance sheet and materiality, but
also given the inherent complexity and manual
processing arising thereof. The portfolio of the
Company comprises of non-listed derivatives
where the values are based on valuation
models and both market observable (level 2
positions)

and non-market observable inputs (level 3
positions), as disclosed in note 24 of the
financial statements.

We have tested the valuation of derivatives by
testing controls in place at the Company,
including those within the model validation
process and the independent price verification
process. Furthermore, we tested a sample of the
inputs to the valuations and performed own
independent sample testing on fair values for a
number of positions held at 31 March 2015.
Additionally, we performed other substantive
procedures including analytical review
procedures on the accounts' movements,
inspection of material manual adjustments and
tested relevant disclosures for accuracy and
completeness.

We consider the fair value of the financial
liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss as disclosed in note 20 to the financial
statements a key audit matter due to the relative
size and complexity as compared to the total
balance sheet, the level of manual processing
and materiality.
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We have audited the valuation of financial

liabilities designated at fair value through profit

and loss by testing the related controls in place

at the Company and by performing substantive

testing of the valuations, including valuation

inputs and models combined with own

independent testing of fair values and inspection

of material manual adjustments.

We consider the valuation of the outstanding
intercompany loans as disclosed in note 13 to
the financial statements as a key audit matter,
due to the relative size of the related account as
compared to the total balance sheet and
materiality.

We have performed, amongst others, the
following audit procedures with respect to the
valuation of intercompany loans:
We challenged management assessment as
to whether there is any objective evidence of
impairment;
We determined that the intercompany entities
were able to meet their financial obligations
towards the Company throughout the year
and through to the date of this report;
We confirmed that Nomura Holdings Inc. has
an intention to provide the necessary level of
financial support to its subsidiaries;
We reviewed the ability of the ultimate parent
of the Company Nomura Holdings Inc. to
continue as a going concern.

Management is responsible for the
preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in accordance with EU-
IFRS and Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil
Code, and for the preparation of the
managing directors' report in accordance with
Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code.
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Furthermore, management is responsible for
such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of the financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

As part of the preparation of the financial
statements, management is responsible for
assessing the Company's ability to continue as
a going concern. Based on the financial
reporting frameworks mentioned, management
should prepare the financial statements using
the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the
Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so. Management
should disclose events and circumstances that
may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern in the
financial statements.

The General Meeting of Shareholders is
responsible for adopting the financial
statements.

Our objective is to plan and perform the audit
assignment in a manner that allows us to obtain
sufficient and appropriate audit evidence for our
opinion.

Our audit has been performed with a high, but
not absolute, level of assurance, which means
we may not have detected all errors and fraud.

We have exercised professional judgment and
have maintained professional skepticism
throughout the audit, in accordance with Dutch
Standards on Auditing, ethical requirements
and independence requirements.

Our audit included e.g.:
Identifying and assessing the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, designing and
performing audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtaining audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.
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The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;
Obtaining an understanding of internal control
relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Company's internal control;
Evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management;
Concluding on the appropriateness of
management's use of the going concern basis
of accounting, and based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify
our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor's report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company ceasing
to continue as a going concern;
Evaluating the overall presentation, structure
and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures; and
Evaluating whether the financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with the managing directors
regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant findings
in internal control that we identify during our
audit.



EDINETOOOO

OO00DoO00ooo0oDo00DO000oO000LO000DO00DO00DO000000DoO0O0nDOO(E24747)

We provide the managing directors with a
statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the
managing directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the
financial statements of the current period and
are therefore the key audit matters.

Pursuant to legal requirements of Part 9 of Book
2 of the Dutch Civil Code (concerning our
obligation to report about the managing
directors' report and other information):
We have no deficiencies to report as a result
of our examination whether the managing
directors' report, to the extent we can assess,
has been prepared in accordance with Part 9
of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and
whether the information as required by Part 9
of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code has been
annexed.
We report that the managing directors' report,
to the extent we can assess, is consistent with
the financial statements.
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We describe these matters in our auditor's

report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in

extremely rare circumstances,not

communicating the matter is in the public

interest.

We have been appointed as auditors for the
audit of the 2014/2015 financial statements of
Nomura Europe Finance N.V. and have been
the external auditor for a long time. The most
recent rotation of the signing external auditor on
the audit of the Company's financial statements
was in 2013. Rotation of the signing external
auditor is one of our safeguards to maintain our
auditor independence.

Amsterdam, 6 July 2015
Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by P.J.A.J. Nijssen
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